tiy T

82- SUBMISSIONS FACING SHEET

]
- N R I HICROFICHE controL ragey
' SYANSI I N
l] F@ i @‘L ‘-'f‘ RSN El
' !
o 1 v
H P TR i
" {\fubu iz BN fl
REGISTRANT'S NAME &w tﬂ\(\'Q‘ZQ \ﬂ\g( i EQQ
*CURRENT ADDRESS - _ :
: e
| PROCESSED
**FORMER NAME | —_ % T 55— ———— |
**NEW ADDRESS THOMSQ

~ FINANCIAL

42G3-28  (INITIAL FILING) l l AR/S

(ANNUAL REPORT)

12G32BR (REINSTATEMENT) l I SUPPL  (OTHER) '

I_.._-,.—!
DEF 1¢A  (FrOXY) ! ;'

CICF/BY:

Do




Market release

12 September 2006

Emeco Holdings Limited
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Emeco reports revenues and EBITDA of $382.8 million and $143.4 million

for FY06 - up 31% and 49% on PCP

Emeco today reported full year accounts for fiscal year 30 June 2006 in line with

prospectus forecasts released in July 2006.

Pro forma Pro forma TPO Pro forma
Actual Actual Forecast
FY 2005 FY2006 FY 2006
Revenue 291.8 382.8 381.0
EBITDA 96.4 143.4 141.5
EBITA 63.0 8904 88.6
Rental machines 431 814 823
Machine sales 464 429

Consistent with prospectus disclosure, the company has reported pro forma revenue of
$382.8 million up 31.2% and pro forma EBITDA of $143.4 million, up 48.7% for the
year ending 30 June 2006 as compared to the previous corresponding period. This
increase was driven predominantly by Emeco’s investment in 383 net additional rental
machines in the year ended 30 June 2006. Part of this investment in net additional rental
machines in the year ended 30 June 2006 results from the acquisition of River Valley in
August 2005, which contributed a fleet of 114 rental machines on acquisition, and the
acquisition of Andy’s Earthmovers in January 2006, which contributed a fleet of 60 rental

machines on acquisition.




Operating segments

Pro forma Pro forma IPO Pro forma
Actual Actual Forecast
FY 2005 EY2006 FY 2006
Revenue
Rental 146.2 220.1 215.9
Sales 117.4 130.3 133.3
Parts & Maintenance 28.2 32.2 31.8
EBITDA
Rental 84.5 131.4 129.3
Sales B.6 8.8 3.0
Parts & Maintenance 33 3.2 3.2

EBITDA margins increased by 4.5 percentage points to 37.5%, for the year ending 30
June 2006 as compared to the previous corresponding period reflecting the increased
contribution from Rental operations.

Depreciation increased by 61.7% to $54.0 million for the year ended 30 June 2006 as
compared to the previous corresponding period. The increase in depreciation is primarily
due to the increase in the rental fleet from 431 machines as at 30 June 2005 to 814
machines as at 30 June 2006 and in part duc to a shift in the mix of the Australian fleet,
with a significant number of growth and replacement machines being larger sized

machines which are typically operated for longer hours on mine sites.

Amortisation expense increased by 11.7% to $10.5 million for the year ended 30 June
2006 reflecting amortisation of contract intangibles created upon the acquisitions of River
Valley and Andy’s Earthmovers,

Geographic highlights

Australia

Pro forma Pro forma IPO Pro forma

Actual Actual Forecast

FY 2005 FY2006 FY 2006
Revenue 244.6 291.4 290.8
EBITDA 73.3 104.9 102.0
EBITA 499 67.0 65.1
Rental machines 271 469 461




Strong continuing growth in the Queensland and Western Australian mining sectors
continued to underpin robust earnings growth for Emeco’s Australian business. In 2006,
inventory of rental machines increased from 271 to 469 with the acquisition of Andy’s in
regional Victoria contributing significantly to this growth.

Management expects strong market conditions to remain in Australia with significant
mine expansions and development planned in Western Australia, Queensland and New
South Wales. New resource developments and continuing trends to outsourcing are
expected to continue to drive Emeco’s financial performance in Australia going forward.

Emeco will continue to seek organic growth opportunities in Australia via its existing
customer contacts and networks as well as broadening its geographic base through
targeted acquisitions in regions which it does not currently have a strong market
presence.

Indonesia
Pro forma Pro forma IPO Pro forma

Actual Actual Forecast

FY 2005 FY2006 FY 2006

Revenue 27.8 32.7 33.3
EBITDA 22.5 24.2 24.9
EBITA 12.5 13.7 14.3
Rental machines 112 146 167

Indonesian mining activity remained robust throughout the year with growth in rental
machine numbers driving a significant increase in revenue from $27.8m in 2005 to
$32.7m in 2006.  As at 30 June 2006, Indonesia’s rental fleet had grown to 146 from
132 in 31 December 2005. While significant opportunities for further growth remain in
Indonesia, Emeco remains focussed on continuing to improve returns from its existing
fleet and will target growth opportunities on a selective basis.

Rest of the World
Pro forma Pro forma TPO Pro forma

Actual Actual Forecast

FY 2005 FY2006 FY 2006
Revenue 19.4 58.7 56.9
EBITDA 0.6 14.3 14.6
EBITA 0.6 8.7 9.2
Rental machines - 199 195




Canada

The acquisition of River Valley in August 2005 continued to deliver for Emeco
throughout the year, capitalising on the significant growth in activity in the Alberta oil
sands. At the time of acquisition, River Valley had approximately 114 items of rental
equipment servicing the construction and mining sectors of Alberta province. This
number increased to 199 by year end 2006.

Sustained oil sands mining activity throughout the North American winter also supported
higher utilisation rates and profitability across the Canadian business. Emeco is
targeting significant growth in Canada, using River Valley as a springboard to move
more rapidly into the ever expanding Alberta oil, gas and coal sectors and the British
Columbia metaliferous mining sector, with a focus on rental opportunities in the vast oil
sands regions.

United States

Emeco continues to grow its presence in the United States used equipment market
through its Houston, Texas sales business and the sales and procurement office in
Atlanta, Georgia. Prior to its recent listing, Emeco also announced the acquisition of a
large package of heavy earth moving equipment partially deployed under rental contracts
with coal mining companies in Kentucky and West Virginia. Consistent with Emeco’s
established strategy of growing its rental business from strategic sales beachheads,
Emeco has opened an office in London, Kentucky targeting rental opportunities in the
Appalachian region.

Management continues to focus on significant opportunities for expanding its rental fleet
in the Appalachian region and bolstering its local management team and believes the
fragmented operator market in the Appalachian coal fields provides a significant in
market opportunity for Emeco going forward.

Europe
Emeco’s small procurement and trading presence in Western Europe continues to focus

on procurement opportunities and was expanded with additional personnel through the
course of 2006.

Management remains focussed on building the sales and procurement business in Europe,
particularly in the Netherlands and believes significant procurement opportunities in
Africa, Russia and the Middle East may be accessed through this strategic location.
Emeco will continue to seek acquisition opportunities in Europe to broaden and extend its
existing operations.




Capital expenditure and funds employed

Pro forma Pro forma IPO Pro forma

Actual Actual Forecast

FY 2005 FY2006 FY2006

Capital expenditure 86.7 313.1 295.2

Maintenarce 15.7 45.8 38.0

Growth 71.0 267.3 257.2

Net Working capital 4,5 52.0 374
movement

Funds employed 326.8 627.9 619.6

ROFE EBITDA (1) 33.4% 29.7% 28.2%

ROFE EBITA (1) 21.7% 18.5% 17.6%

(1) Based on pro forma statutory results

Capital expenditure increased by 261.1% to $313.1 million for the year ending 30 June
2006 as compared to the previous corresponding period. Of the total, Maintenance
Capital Expenditure increased by 191.7% to $45.8 million driven by the increased rental
fleet size, a larger number of rental machines requiring capitalised maintenance and
increased replacements of the existing rental fleet.

Growth Capital Expenditure increased by 276.5% to $267.3 million in the year ending 30
June 2006 as compared to the previous corresponding petiod driven by organic growth in
the Australian rental fleet, the acquisition of River Valley, the subsequent expansion of
the Canadian business, and the acquisition of Andy’s Earthmovers.

As a result of capital expenditures throughout the year offsetting depreciation of $54.0
million, Funds Employed increased by 92.1% to $627.9 million by year end reflecting an
increase in Funds Employed of $301.1 million.

EBITDA ROFE of 29.7% and EBITA ROFE of 18.5% in the year ending 30 June 2006
are below historical average primarily due to the $292.8 million increase in Funds
Employed to $627.9 million as described above and the significant increase in sales
inventories over the period to support the growth in the underlying business.

Outlook and recent developments

The outlook remains strong for Emeco in each of its five operating theatres.
Management expects tight supply conditions to remain in place for its target heavy earth
moving equipment, with commentary from key suppliers suggesting significant new
capacity is unlikely in the near term.




Furthermore, sustained demand from China and India for key commodities continues to
support {urther development of mining infrastructure and forecast increases in volume of
earth moved in each of the major geographies in which Emeco currently operates.

Recent estimates by industry experts AME and ABARE suggest underlying growth in
volume out of ground will continue robustly with forecast annual growth in earth
moved for Emeco’s major industry exposures expected at approximately 6.1% from
2005 — 2010. Strong existing relationships with mine operators and continuing trends
towards outsourcing of materials handling by mine operators are expected to continue to
underpin Emeco’s financial performance in the future.

Civil construction demand for heavy earth moving equipment in Australia and Canada
also remains strong with the outlook particularly positive in North America as a result of
the Alaskan/Canadian Pipeline project and US Federal Highways plan.

Although market conditions for the supply of low-houred heavy earth moving equipment
remain tight, Emeco’s global procurement network continues to successfully identify
significant opportunities for the expansion of Emeco’s rental fleet and sales inventory.
As a result of recent procurement successes, management expects to exceed forecast
FYO07 capital deployment targets.

Year to date committed Growth Capital Expenditure currently sits at $156.7m
compared with full year FY07 prospectus forecasts of $113.4m and year to date
committed maintenance capital expenditure of $57.1m compares with full year FY07
prospectus forecasts of $54.6m.  Qur procurement successes {0 date, along with
additional success throughout the balance of the year coupled with some targeted
acquisitions are likely to result in Emeco exceeding its prospectus capital deployment
forecasts for FY07.

Although deployment lags inevitably delay the full earnings benefits from the increased
capital deployments in Emeca’s year FY07 result, these successes continue to underpin
management and the Board’s confidence in Emeco’s 2007 prospectus forecast of 44.6%
growth in pro forma EBITDA to $207.3 and full year forecast pro forma (pre
amortisation) NPATA of $73.7 million.

Further enquiries should be directed to:

Mr Laurie Freedman Mr Robin Adair
Managing Director and CEO Chief Financial Officer
+61 8 9420 0222 +61 8 9420 0222




APPENDIX 4E
Preliminary Final report
Period Ended 30 June 2006

Name of entity
| Emeco Holdings Limited

ABN or equivalent company reference

ACN.112 88 815

Results for announcement to the market

Reporting Period: Year ended 30 June 2006 (Previous
corresponding period: the period 14 December 2004 to 30 June

2005)
$A°000
Revenues from ordinary activities 0@ 382,845
Profit from ordinary activities after tax attributable to members of
Emeco Group')® 22,670
Net profit for the period attributable to members of Emeco Group"? 22,670
Dividends (distributions) Amount per sccurity Franked amount per security
Final dividend Nil Nil

Emeco Holdings Ltd has proposed not to pay any dividends for the period ended June 30 2006.
Record date for determining entitlements to the dividend N/A

Brief explanation of any of the figures reported above and short details of any bonus or cash issue or other
item(s) of importance not previously released to the market:

' Emeco Holdings Lid was incorporated on 14 December 2004. Accordingly, no percentage change is shown from the previous
period as Emeco Holdings Ltd did not trade prior ta 14 December 2004, However, an annualised comparison of the Emeco
Group’s reported pro forma FY 20085 results with the FY 2006 pro forma results and the FY 2006 pro forma Prospectus
forecast results has been discloscd in the media release which accompanies this appendix 4F.

) «Emeeo Group” means the consolidated entity comprising Emeco Holdings Limited, Emeco (1K) Limited and their wholly
awned subsidiaries and “Members of the Emeco Group™ means the holders of ordinary and preferred ordinary shares of Emeco
Holdings l.imited and Emeco (UK} Limited.

Commentary on Results

For commentary on the results of the Emeco Group refer to the accompanying media release, audited
financial report and directors’ report.



APPENDIX 4E

Preliminary Final report
Period Ended 30 June 2006

Ratios and Other Mcasures
NTA backing

Net tangible asset backing per ordinary security

(8]

Current Period

$0.11

NTA if it were calculated on the basis of the Company's post-IPO capital structure.

Dividends
Date the dividend is payable

Record date to determine catitlements to the dividend

Amount per security

NTA is based on the total issucd shares of the Members of the Emeco Group as at 30 June 2006 and is therefore based on
the pre-1PO capital structure of the Members of the Emeco Group. Emeco Holdings Lid’s pre-IPO capital structurc differs
significantly from its post-TPQ capital structarc. The NTA shown in this appendix 4E is therefore not comparable to the

Amount per security

Franked amount per security

Final Dividend: Current ycar Nil Nil
Previous year Nil Nil
Interim Dividend: Current year Nil Nil
Previous year Nil Nil

Total Dividends

Amount per security

Total amount

Total Dividend: Current year Nil

Nil

Previous year Nil

Nil




Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
ABN 89 112 188 815

Annual Financial Report

30 June 2006




Directors’ report
For the year cnded 30 June 2006

The directors of Emeco Holdings Limited (“Emeco” or “the Company”) present their
report together with the financial reports of the consolidated entity, being Emeco and its
controlled cntities (“the Emeco Group” or “the Consolidated Entity”) for the financial year
ended 30 June 2006 (“FY 2006").

Directors Report
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Directors’ report
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Directors

The directors of the Company during or since the end of the [inancial year are:

Greg Minton, (Age 44), Chairman and independent Non-Executive Director
Appointcd Director and Chairman in December 2004

Greg Minton is & pariner of Archer Capital. Greg joincd Archer Capital in 2000 after six years in senior
gencral management roles with CSR, most recently as General Manager Australasia of CSR Humes, a large
precast concrete products manufacturer. Prior to his invelvement with CSR, Greg was a management
consultant with McKinsey & Co in Australia, Scandinavia and the UK. Greg is a director of RED Paper
Group, chairman of One Source Group and Leasing Solutions and a former director of Repco and Hirequip.
Greg holds a Master of Business Administration from IMD, Switzerland, a Bachelor of Engineering and a
Bachelor of Economics from the University of Queensland.

Laurie Freedman, (Age 57), Managing Director
Appointed Managing Director in January 2005

Lauric Freedman has been managing director of Emeco’s business since 1999. Laurie has over 36 years
experience in the building, construction materials and contracting industries both in Australia and overseas,
including senior management roles with CSR in Hong Kong, China and the United States. Lauric was a
dircctor and chief executive officer of AWP Contractors, contract miners, for five years before joining
Emeco in April 1999, In his capacity as managing dircctor of Emeco’s business, he has oversecn a business
development strategy under which the Group grew substantially in the last five years. Lavrie holds a
Bachelor of Civil Engineering from Curtin University, is a Member of the Institute of Engineers Australia,
a Ecllow of the Institute of Quarrying - Australia, an Associate of the Australian Institute of Management
and a Member of the Australian Institutc of Company Directors.

Robin Adair, (Age 45), Chief Financial Officer

Appointed Director in January 2003

Robin Adair has 15 ycars commercial experience across a breadth of business units within the CSR group.
After spending 12 months as chief financial officer of Beltreco, he joined Emeco’s business as chief
financiat officer in October 2000. Robin has been responsible for a number of business evaluations, start-
ups, acquisitions, joint ventures, disposals, and business and system improvements over this period. He has
responsibility for all of Emeco’s finance, treasury and risk management functions. His international
experience includes engagements in Taiwan, Indonesia, Thailand and the United States. Robin holds a
Bachclor of Business (Accountancy) from University of South Australia and a Master of Business
Administration from Deakin University and is a Certified Practising Accountant.

Alec Brennan, (Age 59), independent Non-Executive Director and Chairman Elect

Appuinted Director in August 2005

Alec Brennan was appointed as an independent non-exccutive Director in August 2003, Alec is Chief
Exccutive Officer of CSR and has been with them since 1969 having worked in various capacities for 37
years. Alec was appointed as an exccutive director of CSR in 1996, deputy managing director in 1998 and
managing directer in 2003. Alec holds a Master of Business Administration (with Distinction) from City
University, London and a Bachelor of Science, Food Technology (Honours) degree from the University of

Emeco Holdings Ltd




Directors’ report contd.
For the year ended 30 Junc 2006

NSW. On or before 1 December 2006, it is intended that Greg Mintan retire as Chairman. The Board has
approved Alec's appointment as the new Chairman, pending a suitable time for the handover of that role
being agreed.

Stuart Fitton, (Age 59), Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed Director in April 2006

Stuart Fitton was appointed as an independent non-cxecutive Director in April 2006. Stuart has had
experience in global finance and corporate advisory roles in Australia, the UK and the United States. Stuart
has been employed as a senior executive with Barclays Bank, Citibank, Bain & Co and GE Capital. He is
also a former finance director of MIM Holdings. Stuart brings to Emeco an understanding of globat capital
markets and a wealth of management experience, Stuart holds a Bachelor of Economics from University of
Western Australia.

Paul McCullagh, (Age 54), Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed Director in December 2004

Paul McCullagh is a founding Managing Director at Pacific Equity Partners (“PEP”) and his current
portfolio of board positions include Vision Fire & Security, Link Market Services and CIBC Australia.
Prior to founding PEP, Paul was the managing director of Salomon Brothers Australia. Paul was also
previously head of Australasia for Prudential Securities. He has been active in Australasia since 1986 and
has 2 wide range of transaction experience. Paul received a Bachelor of Commerce and a Master of
Business Studies from University College, Dublin and is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England, treland and Wales. Paul is also a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia.

Peter Johnston, {Age 55), Independent Non Executive Director
Appointed Dircctor as from 1 September 2006

Peter Iohnston is currently Managing Director and CEO of Minara Resources Limited, a position he has
occupied since November 2001. Peter was employed in various senior roles with WMC Ltd from 1993 to
2001. Peter received an Arts degree from the University of Western Australia, He is a past president and
current council member of the Western Australian Chamber of Minerals and Energy and a fellow of the
Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy.

James Carnegie, (Age 38), Non executive diractor
Appointed in December 2004. Resigned as a director on 8 June 2006.

James Carnegie is a pariner of Archer Capital. Prior to joining Archer Capital in 2004, James was a
director of Macquarie Direct Investment Limited, the private equity division of Macguarie Bank. In his five
years with Macquarie Direct Investment Limited, he was responsible for sourcing and completing
profitable private equity investments for the Macquarie Investment trusts. James has sat on several boards
of portfolio companies including Signature Security, Staging Connections and, from November 2002 to
February 2005, SMS Management and Technology. Before joining Macquarie, James worked with the
hedge fund Platinum Asset Management; and in the Australian retail industry, primarily with Just Jeans, He
holds a Bachelor of Commerce from the University of Melbourne and a Master of Business Administration
with Distinction from Harvard University.

Emeco Holdings Ltd 4




Directors’ report contd.
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Robert Kaczkar, {Age 35), Non executive director
Appointed in December 2004, Resigned as a director on 18 June 2006,

Rob Kaczkar is a Managing Director at Pacific Equity Partners (“PEP”). Rob joined PEP at its inception in
1998 and rejoined PEP in 2004 having spent the previous three years in London. While based in London,
he was a Principal with the Texas Pacific Group where he focused on its European portfolio. Before
moving into the private equity industry, Rob spent seven years with Bain & Company advising clients on
jssues relating to strategy, metgers, acquisition, privatisalion and operating improvements in a wide range
of industries. During that time he was based in the United Kingdom, United States, Singapore and
Australia. Rob holds an Honours Degree in Mechanical and Manufacturing Engineering from the
University of Melbourne.

Company secretary

Michael Kirkpatrick was appointed to the position of Company Secretary in April 2005. Michael has
previously worked as legat counsel and company secretary of Westscheme, a large industry superannuation
fund and as a corporate lawyer with national law firms Freehills and Blake Dawson Waldron, Michael
holds bachelors degrees in arts and economics from the University of Westcrn Australia and a law degree
with merit honours from Murdoch University.

Directors meetings
The number of meetings of the directors held during the year and the number of meetings attended by cach
of the directors was as follows. Emeco Holdings Ltd was not a listed entity during the financial ycar and

did not establish board committees until the end of the financial year.

Table 1 — Directors’ attendance

Director Board Meetings
A B
Greg Minton 15 15
Paul McCullagh 13 15
Laurie Freedman 15 15
Robin Adair 15 15
Alec Brennan 11 14
Stuart Fitton 5 5
James Carnegic 12 13
Raobert Koczkar 12 13

A — Number of meetings attended
B — Number of meetings held during the time the director held office during the year

Emeco Holdings Lid
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Corporate Governance Statement

Under ASX listing rulc 4.10.3, the Company is required to include in its annual report a statement
disclosing the extent to which it has followed the principles of good corporate governance (ASX
Principles) and associated best practice recommendations set by the ASX Corporate Governance Council
(ASX Best Practice Recommendations).

Background

The Company was admitted to the official list of the ASX on 28 July 2006. Its ordinary shares commenced
trading on ASX on the same day. The Company was therefore not a listed disclosing entity to which the
Best Practice Recommendations applied during FY 2006.

However, the Company's wholly owned subsidiary, Emeco Ltd, remained a tistcd entity for the entire
2005/2006 year and continued to be so until its removal from the official list on 15 August 2006 following
the redemption of all of its exchangeable notcs on 4 August 2006. The dircctors of Emeco Lid implemented
policies and practices to ensure Emeco Ltd complied with the Best Practice Recommendations to the extent
the directors considered appropriate, These policies and practices have been substantially retained by the
Company following the removal of Emeco Ltd from and the admission of the Company to the official list
of ASX. Where appropriate the Company and its board have adopted new policies and established new
commiltees to ensure compliance with the Best Practice Recommendations.

This corporate governance statement describes the Emeco Group’s current corporate governance practices
and policies and the extent to which they comply with the ASX Principtes and Best Practice
Recommendations.

Principle 1 Lay solid foundations for management and oversight
The Board has adopted a Charter thet details its functions and responsibilities.

The Charter sets out the responsibilities of:
s the Board;
s individual directors;

e the Chairman.

Under the Charter the Board is accountable to the shareholders for the averall performance of the Company
and the management of its affairs. Key responsibilities of the Board include:

o devcloping and approving cotporate strategy,
s evaluating, approving and monitoring the strategic and financial plans and objectives of the Company;
¢ dctermining dividend policy and the amount and timing of all dividends;

» cvaluating, approving and monitoring major capital expenditure, capital management and all major
acquisitions, divestiturcs and other corporate transactions, including the issuc of sceuritics,

¢ evaluating and monitoring annual budgets and business plans;
« approving all accounting policies, financial reports and external communications by the Emeco Group;

e appointing, monitoring and managing the performance of executive directors.

Emeco Holdings Ltd ]
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The Charter sets a minimum number of Board meetings and provides for the establishment of the Audit and
Risk Committee, and the Remuneration and Nomination Committee. The Charter also scts minimum
standards of ethical conduct of the directors, which are further claborated on in the Company’s Code of
Conduct, and specifies the terms on which directors are able to obtain independent professional advice at
the Company's expense.

A copy of the Board Charter is available on the Emeco website.

Principle 2 Structure the Board to add value

Skills, experience and expertise of the directors

The directors consider that collectively they have the relevant skills, experience and expertise to fulfil their
obligations to the Company, its shareholders and other stakeholders.

The directors and a brief description of their skills and experience arc set out at pages 3 to 5 of this report.

Status of the directors

The tablc below sets out details of the status of each of the directors as independent or non-executive
directors, their date of appointment and whether they are secking re-glection at the 2006 AGM of the

Company.

Table 2 - Status of the directors

Director Date of Independent Non-executive Seeking re-
appointment election at 2005

AGM

Mr Robin Adair 21 January 2005 No No No

Mr Alcc Brennan [6 August 2005 Yes Ycs No

MTr Stuart Fitton 5 April 2006 Yes Yes Yes

Mr Lauric Freedman 21 January 2005 No No No

Mr Peter Johnston | September 2006 Yes Yes Yes

Mr Paul McCullagh 23 December 2004 Yes Yes No

Mr Greg Minton 14 December 2004 Yes Yes No

Emece Holdings Lid




Directors’ report contd.
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Mr Brennan, Mr Fitton, Mr Johnston, Mr McCullagh and Mr Minton are independent directors. The
Company therefore complies with ASX Best Practice Recommendation 2.1. Mr MecCullagh and Mr Minton
are considered to be independent directors because, whilst they are associates of certain shareholders of the
Company, each of the sharcholder groups with which they are associated holds less than 5% of the
Company's ordinary shares. Under clause 3.5(a) of the Board Charter, for the purposes of determining the
indcpendence of a director, a substantial shareholder is one who holds 10% or more of the issued shares of
the Company.

Mr Minton is the chairperson of the board and the Company thercfore complies with ASX Best Practice
Recommendation 2.2. As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 26 June 2006 {including the
supplementary prospectus dated 27 July 2006) (Prospectus), on or beforc 1 December 2006 it is intended
that Mr Minton will retire as chairman. The board has appointed Mr Brennan as the ncw chairman, pending
a suitable time for the handover of that role to be agreed.

Directors' retirement and reappointment
Under the terms of the Company’s constitution, a director other than the managing director must retire from
office or seek re-election by no later than the third annual general meeting after their appointment or 3

years, whichever is the longer.

At least one director must retire from office at each annual general mecting, unless determined otherwise
by a resolution of the Company’s sharcholders.

Because Mr Fitton and Mr Johnston were appointed as directors of the Company by resolution of the
directors, they are required under the Company’s constitution to retire at the 2006 annual gencral meeting.
M Fitton and Mr Johnston have both indicated they will seek reappointment at that meeting.

Procedure for taking professional advice

Under the Board Charter a director is entitled to seek professional advice at the Company’s expensc on any
matter connected with the discharge of their duties in accordance with the procedure set out in the Charter,
a copy of which is available on the Emeco website.

Board committees

The board has established the following standing committees:
s The Audit and Risk Committee; and

e The Remuneration and Nomination Committee.
‘The Charters for each of these committees are available on the Emeco website,
Members of the Audit and Risk Committee are Mr McCullagh (Chair), Mr Minton and Mr Fitton.

Members of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee arc Mr Brennan, Mr Minton and Mr Freedman.
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Principle 3 Promote ethical and responsible decision making

The Company censiders that confidence in its integrity can only be achieved if its employees and officers
conduct themselves ethically in all of their commercial dealings on the Company’s behalf. The Company
has therefore recognised that it should actively promote ethical conduct amongst its employces, officers and
contractors.

"The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct and a Share Trading Policy. The Codc of Conduct and the
Share Trading Policy apply to all directors, officers, employees, consultants and contractors of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The objectives of the Code of Conduct are to ensure that:

» high standards of corporate and individual behaviour are observed by all employees in the context of their
cmployment with the Company or a subsidiary,

» employees are aware of their responsibilities under their contract of employment and always act in an
ethical and professional manner; and

« all persons dealing with Emeco, whether it be cmployces, shareholders, suppliers, clients or
competitors, can be guided by the stated valucs and practices of Emeco.

The Share Trading Policy is specifically designed to raise awareness of, and minimise any potertial for
breach of, the prohibitions on insider trading contained in the Corporations Act 2001, The policy is also
designed to minimise the chance that misunderstandings or suspicions arisc regarding employecs trading
while in possession of non-public price sensitive information by imposing restrictions on employees and
officers in relation to the trading of the Company’s shares.

Copies of the Code of Conduct and the Share Trading Policy are available on the Emeco website.
Principle 4 Safeguard integrity in financial reporting

For FY 2006 the Managing Director, Mr Freedman, and the Chief Financial Officer, Mr Adair, provided
the Company with the declaration prescribed by section 295A(2) of the Corporations Act 2001. The
Company has thercfore complied with recommendation 4.1.

The Board has established an Audit & Risk Commitiee. Details regarding membership of the Committee
are set out above. The Committee comprises three independent non-executive dircctors all of whom have
financial expertise. Details of the qualifications of the members of the Committee are set out al pages Jto§
of this report.

A copy of the Committee’s charter is available on the Emeco website.

Principle 5 Make timely and balanced disclosure

The Company is committed to complying with its continuous disclosure obligations under the ASX Listing
Rules and disclosing to investors and other stakeholders all material information about the Company ina

timely and responsive manncr.

The Company has adopted a Continuous Disclosure Policy which is available on the Emeco website.
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The Continuous Disclosure Policy specifies the processes by which the Company cnsures compliance with
its continuous disclosure obligations, The policy sets out the internal notification and decision making
procedures in relation to these obligations, and the roles and responsibilities of the Company’s officers and
employces in the context of these obligations. It emphasises a pro-active approach to continuous disclosure
and requires the Company to comply with the spirit as wel as the letter of the ASX continuous disclosure
requirements.

The policy specifies the Company representatives who are authorised to speak publicly on behalf of the
Company and procedures for dealing with analysts. It also scts out how the Company deals with market
rumour and speculation,

Principle 6 Respect the rights of shareholders

The Company’s ordinary shares, which commenced trading on the ASX on 28 July 2006, are the
Company’s only publicly traded securities.

Because the Company has only recently been admitted to the official list of ASX, the Company is in the
early stages of developing a formal shareholder communications strategy. However, whilst the Company
has not formaily adopted such a strategy, it acknowledges the importance of effective communication and
has made this annual report available to all of them.

Furthermore all ASX announcements are posted on the Emeco website after they have been released to the
ASX. The Company also proposes to place the full text of notices of meetings and explanatory material on
the website.

The Company offers a number of options to shareholders in relation to electronic communications.
Shareholders can elect to receive notification by email when payment advices, annual reports and notices of
meetings and proxy forms are available on line. They can also elect to reccive cmail notification of
important announcements.

In relation to recommendation 6.2, the Company will provide its auditor with notice of the general meeting
of the Company, as is required by section 249K of the Corporations Act. The Company will also request its
auditor to attend its annual general meeting and be available to answer sharcholder questions about the
conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the auditor’s report.

Principle 7 Recognise and manage risk

Emeco Holdings Ltd accepts that risk is an unavoidable part of the Emeco Group's activities. However, the
Company actively manages risk in order to optimise outcomes for shareholders and other stakcholders and
ensure the integrity of the Group's financial statements.

The Board of the Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy which describes:

s the principal risks for the Emeco Group;

»  the Group's risk management framework and controls; and

« the role and respective accountabilities of the Board, the Audit and Risk Committce and Emeco Group
management within the risk management framework.
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The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the overall risk
management framework. It is also required to review the Risk Management Policy on an annual basis,

In accordance with ASX Principle 7, the Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer are required to
provide a written statemcnt to the Board that:

e the statement they give to the Board in rclation 1o the integrity of the Emeco Group’s financial
statements is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal compliance and control
which implements the policies adopted by the Board; and

e the Emeco Group’s risk management and internal compliance and control system is operating
cfficiently and effectively in all material respects.

The Risk Management Policy is available on the Emeco website.

Principle 8 Encourage enhanced performance

The Company has established a Remuneration and Nomination Committee, the responsibilities of which

include:

o critically reviewing the performance and effectiveness of the Board and its individual members,

+ periodically assessing the skills required to discharge the Board’s duties, having regard to the strategic
direction of the Company; and

» reviewing the membership and performance of other Board commitiges and make recommendations to
the Board.

A review of the performance of the Board and individual members did not take place during FY 2006. In
this context it should he remembered that the Company was admitted to the official list and became subject
to the ASX Best Practice Recommendations [rom 28 July 2006.

The Committee intends to review the performance of the Board prior to the end of the 2005/2006, The
performance of the Managing Director is constantly monitored by the non-exccutive directors.

Formal reviews of the performance of each senior manager within the Emeco Group are conducted by the
Managing Director in August/September cach year, These performance reviews provide the Managing
Director and each senior manager with the opportunity not only to review the manager’s performance but
also to review and assess the manager's personal and professional development objectives.

Principle 9 Remunerate fairly and responsibly

The Board has established a Remuneration and Nomination Committee which is required to comply with
the terms of the Remuneration and Nomination Commitice Charter.

The Emeco Group remuncration policy is substantially reflected in the objectives of the Committee. The
Committee’s objectives are to cndeavour to ensure that:

e the Directors and senior management of the Group are remunerated fairly and appropriately;

e the remuneration palicies and outcomes strike an appropriate balance betwcen the interests of the
Company's shareholders, and rewarding and motivating the Group's exccutives and employees in order
to secure the Jong term benefits of their energy and loyalty; and
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¢ the human resources policies and practices are consistenl with and complementary to the strategic

direction and human rescurces objectives of the Company as determined by the Board.

Under its Charter, the Remuneration and Nomination Committec is required to review and make
recommendations to the Board about;

» the general remuneration strategy for the Group, so that it motivates the Group's executives and
employees to pursue the long term growth and success of the Group and establishes a fair and
transparent relationship between individual performance and remuneration;

e the terms of remuneration for the executive Dircctors and other senior management of the Group from
time to time including the criteria for assessing performance;

e the outcomes of remuneration reviews for executives collectively, and the individual reviews for the
exccutive Directors, and other senior management of the Group;

e remuneration reviews for executive and non-executive Dircctors;
« changes in remuneration policy and practices, including superannuation and other benefits;
o cmployee equity, plans and allocations under those plans; and

e the disclosure of remuneration requirements in the Company's public materials including ASX filings
and the annual report.

A remuneration report detailing the information required by section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to FY 2006 is included in the Directors’ Report.

Principle 10  Recognise the legitimate interests of stakeholders

The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct, the objectives of which are set out in the section of this
Corporate Governance Statement dealing with ASX Principle 3. The Code provides that employees,
officers, consultants and contractors should at all times comply with the spirit as well as the letter of all

laws which govern the operation of the Company and with the principles of the Code.

The Code also provides that any failure to act in compliance with its terms may result in disciplinary action,
including in serious cases, termination of employment.

The Code of Conduct is available on the Emeco website.

Nature of operations and principal activities

The principal activities during the financial year of the entities within the Emeco Group were the Rental,
Sales, and Maintenance of heavy earthmoving equipment.

As set out in this report, the nature of the Emeco Group’s operations and principal activilies have been
consistent throughout the financial year.
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Operating and financial review

Commentary on results
The Emeco Group

In erder to compare actual operating performance against financial information and forecasts in the
Praspectus, the financial results set out in the following table and discussed below have been prepared
using pro forma actual 2005/2006 year results for the Emcco Group. The reported actual results set out in
the statutory financial information have been adjusted {“pro-forma actual”) to enable comparison to the
pro-forma forecast disclosed in the Prospectus.

Pro-forma Pro-forma IPO Pro-forma
Actual Actual Forccast
FY 2005 FY2006 FY 2006
Revenue 291.8 3828 381.0
EBITDA 96.4 143 .4 141.5
EBITA 63.0 394 386
Rental machines 431 814 823
Machine sales 464 429

Consistent with prospectus disclosure, the company has reported pro forma revenue of $382.8 million up
31.2% and pro forma EBITDA of $143.4 million, up 48.7% for the year ending 30 June 2006 as compared
to the previous corresponding period. This increase was driven predominantly by the Emeco Group's
investment in 383 net additional rental machines in the year ended 30 June 2006. Part of this investment in
net additional rental machines in the year ended 30 June 2006 results from the acquisition of River Valley
in August 2005, which contributed a fleet of 114 rental machines on acquisition, and the acquisition of
Andy’s Earthmovers in January 2006, which contributed a fleet of 60 rental machines on acquisition.

Operating segments

Pro-forma Pro-forma IPQ Pro-forma
Actual Actual Forecast
FY 2005 FY2006 FY 2006
Revenue
Rental 146.2 220.1 215.9
Sales 117.4 130.3 1333
Parts & Maintenance 28.2 322 31.8
EBITDA
Rental 84.5 131.4 129.3
Sales 8.6 8.8 9.0
Parts & Maintenance 33 32 3.2
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EBITDA margins increased by 4.5 percentage points to 37.5%, for the year ending 30 Fune 2006 as
compared to the previous corresponding pericd reflecting the increased contribution from Rental
operations.

Depreciation increased by 61.7% to $54.0 million for the year ended 30 June 2006 as compared to the
previous corresponding period. The increase in depreciation is primarily due to the increase in the rental
fleel from 431 machines as at 30 June 2005 to 814 machines as at 30 June 2006 and in part due to a shift in
the mix of the Australian fleet, with a significant number of growth and replacement machines heing larger
sized machines which are typically operatcd for longer hours on mine sites.

Amortisation expense increased by 11.7% to $10.5 million for the year cnded 30 June 2006 reflecting
amortisation of contract intangibles acquired upon River Valley and Andy’s Earthmovers acquisitions.

Geographic highlights

Australia
Pro-forma Pro-forma 1PO Pro-forma
Actual Actual Forecast
FY 2005 FY2006 FY 2006
Revenue 244.6 291.4 290.8
EBITDA 733 104.9 102.0
EBITA 499 67.0 65.1
Renta! machines 271 469 461

Strong continuing growth in the Quecnsland and Western Australian mining sectors continued to underpin
robust earnings growth for Emeco’s Australian business. In 2006, inventory of rental machines increased
from 271 to 469 with the acquisition of Andy’s in regional Victoria contributing significantly to this
growth.

Management expects strong market conditions to remain in Australia with significant mine expansions and
development planned in Westcrn Australia, Queensland and New South Wales. New resource
developments and continuing trends to outsourcing are expected to continue to drive Emeco’s financial
performance in Australia going forward.

Emeco will continue 1o scek organic growth opportunities in Australia via its existing customer contacts

and networks as well as broadening its geographic base through targeted acquisitions in regions which it
does not currently have a strong market presence.
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Indonesia
Pro-forma Pro-forma PO Pro-forma
Actual Actual Forecast
FY 2005 FY2006 FY 2006
Revenue 27.8 32.7 33.3
EBITDA 22.5 242 249
EBITA 12.5 13.7 14.3
Rental machines 112 146 167

Indonesian mining activity remained robust throughout the year with growth in rental machine numbers
driving a significant increase in revenue from $27.8m in 2005 to $32.7m in 2006.  As at 3¢ June 2006,
Indonesia’s rental fleet had grown to 146 from 132 in 31 December 2005, While significant opportunities
for further growth remain in Indonesia, Emeco remains focussed on continuing to improve returns from its
existing fleet and will target growth opportunities on a selective basis.

Rest of the World

Pro-forma Pro-forma IPO Pro-forma
Actual Actual Forecast
FY 2005 FY20006 FY 2006
Revenue 19.4 58.7 56.9
EBITDA 0.6 14.3 14.6
EBITA 0.6 87 9.2
Rental machines - 199 195

Canada

The acquisition of River Valley in August 2005 continued to deliver for the Emeco Group throughout the
year, capitalising on the significant growth in activity in the Alberta oil sands. At the time of acquisition,
River Valley had approximately 114 items of rental equipment servicing the construction and mining
sectors of Alberta province. This number increased to 199 by year end 2006.

Sustained oil sands mihing activity throughout the North American winter also supported higher utilisation
rates and profitability actoss the Canadian business. Emeco is targeting significant growth in Canada,
using River Valley as a springboard to move more rapidly into the ever expanding Alberta oil, gas and coal
sectors and the British Columbia metaliferous mining sector, with a focus on rental opportunities in the vast
oil sands regions.

Untited States

The Emeco Group continues 1o grow its presence in the United States used cquipment market through its
Houston, Texas sales business and the sales and procurement office in Atlanta, Georgia. Prior to its recent
listing, Emeco also announced the acquisition of a targe package of heavy earth maving equipment partially
deployed under rentat contracts with coal mining companies in Kentucky and West Virginia, Consistent
with Emeco's established strategy of growing its rental business from strategic sales beachheads, Emeco’s
US subsidiary has opened an office in London, Kentucky targeting rental opportunitics in the Appalachian
region.
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Management continues to focus on significant opportunitics for expanding its rental fleet in the
Appalachian region and bolstering its local management team and believes the fragmented operator market
in the Appalachian coal fields provides a significant in market opportunity for Emeco going forward.

Europe

The Emeco Group’s small procurement and trading presence in Western Europe continues to focus on
procurement opportunities and was expanded with additional personnel through the course of 2006,

Management remains focussed on building the sales and procurement business in Europe, particularly in
the Netherlands and believes significant procurement opportunities in Africa, Russia and the Middle East
may be accessed through this strategic location, Emeco will continue to seek acquisition opportunities in

Europe to broaden and extend its existing operations.

Capital expenditure and funds employed

Pro-forma Pro-forma IPO Pro forma
Actual Actual forecast
FY 2005 FY2006 FY2000
Capital expenditure 86.7 313.1 205.2
Maintenance 15.7 45.8 38.0
Growth 71.0 267.3 257.2
Net Working capital movement 45 52.0 37.4
Funds empioyed 326.8 627.9 619.6
ROFE EBITDA (1) 334% 29.7% 28.2%
ROFE EBITA (1) 21.7% 18.5% 17.6%

(1} Based on pro forma statutory results

Capital expenditure increased by 261.1% to $313.1 million for the ycar ending 30 June 2006 as compared
to the previous corresponding period. Of the total, Maintenance Capital Expenditure increased by 191.7%
to $45.8 million driven by the increased rental fleet size, a larger number of rental machines requiring
capitalised maintenance and increased replacements of the existing rental fleet.

Growth Capital Expenditure increased by 276.5% to $267.3 million in the year ending 30 June 2000 as
compared to the previous corresponding period driven by organic growth in the Australian rental flcet, the
acquisition of River Valley, the subsequent expansion of the Canadian business, and the acquisition of
Andy’s Earthmovers.

As a result of capital expenditures throughout the year offseiting depreciation of $54.0 million, Funds
Employed increased by 92.1% to $627.9 millian by year end reflecting an increase in Funds Employed of
$301.1 million.

EBITDA ROFE of 29.7% and EBITA ROFE of 18.5% in the year ending 30 June 2006 are below historical
average primarily due to the $292.8 million increase in Funds Emptoyed to $627.9 million as described
above and the significant increase in sales inventories over the period to support the growth in the
underlying business.
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Qutlook and recent developments

The outlook remains strong for Emeco in cach of its five aperating theatres. Management expects tight
supply conditions to remain in place for its target heavy earth moving cquipment, with commentary from
key suppliers suggesting significant new capacity is unlikely in the near term.

Furthermore, sustained demand from China and India for key commoditics continues to suppott further
development of mining infrastructure and forecast increases in volume of earth moved in each of the major
geographies in which Emeco currently operates.

Recent estimates by industry experts AME and ABARE suggest underlying growth in volume out of
ground will continue robustly with forecast annual growth in earth moved for Emeco’s major industry
exposures expected at approximately 6.1% from 2005 — 2010. Strong existing relationships with mine
operators and continuing trends towards outsourcing of materials handling by minc operators are expected
10 continue to underpin Emeco’s financial performance in the future.

Civil construction demand for heavy carth moving equipment in Australia and Canada also remains strong
with the outlook particularly positive in North America as a result of the Alaskan/Canadian Pipeline project
and US Federal Highways plan.

Although market conditions for the supply of low-houred heavy earth moving equipment remain tight,
Emeco’s global procurement nctwork continues to successfully identify significant opportunities for the
expansion of Emeco’s rental fleet and sales inventory. As a result of recent procurement successes,
management expects to exceed forecast FY(7 capital deployment targets.

Year to date commitied Growth Capital Expenditure currently sits at $156.7m compared with full year
Y07 prospectus forecasts of $113.4m and year to date committed maintenance capital expenditure of
$57.1m compares with full year FY07 prospectus forecasts of $54.6m. Our procurement successes 1o date,
along with additional success throughout the balance of the year coupled with some targeted acquisitions
are likely to result in Emeco exceeding its prospectus capital deployment forecasts for FY07.

Although deployment lags inevitably delay the full earnings benefits from the increased capital
deployments in Emeco’s year FY07 result, these successes continuc to underpin management and the

Board’s confidence in Emeco’s 2007 prospectus forecast of 44.6% growth in pro forma EBITDA to $207.3
and full year forecast pro forma {pre amorlisation} NPATA of $73.7 million.

Dividends

The Company has proposed not to pay a dividend for the year ended 30 Junc 2000.

Significant changes in state of affairs

During the financial year under review there were no significant changes in the Emeco Group’s state of
affairs other than those disclosed in the operating and financial review scction above or in the financial
statements and the notes thereto.
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Significant events after balance date
Completion of the IPO

Following the successful completion of the Company’s initial public offering (IPO), the Company’s
ordinary shares commenced trading on ASX on 28 July 2006 on a conditional and deferred settlement basis
and on an unconditional basis on 7 August 2006. Following completion of the IPO, the Company used the
gross procecds of the JPO to:

« reduce net debt to approximately $250 million (including the elimination of all debt relating to the
Emeco Lid exchangeable notes — see below),

s pay the costs of the TPO;

s acquire all of the issued capital of Emeco (UK) Ltd.
Redemption of Emeco Ltd ¢exchangeable notes

On 4 August 2006, Emcco Ltd redeemed all outstanding exchangeable notes (Notes) which had not been
exchanged for the Company's ordinary shares in the [PO. On 15 August 2006, Emeco Lid was removed at
its request from the official list of the ASX.

Acquisition of Bevans

Under an asset purchase agreement dated 13 June 2006, Emeco International Pty Ltd, a subsidiary of the
Company, agreed to acquire Bevans, an independent earthmoving equipment rental and sales business
based in Orange, NSW.

The acquisition price for the business comprised a cash component of $8.7 million, and an issue of 666,666
shares in the Company to the vendor. The acquisition of Bevans was completed on 5 July 2006.

Acquisition of equipment by Emeco Equipment (USA) LLC

On 10 July 2006, Emcco Equipment (USA) LLC, a member of the Emeco Group of companies, acquired
from TSM Notth America Inc. (I'SM) a large package of TSM’s heavy earth moving equipment which is
partially deploycd under rental contracts with coal mining companies in Kentucky and West Virginia.

Under the terms of the sale agreement between Emeco and TSM, Emeco acquired approximately 50
machines for a purchase price of US$11.4 million. Emeco was also assigned a number of TSM’s
equipment rental contracts.

Likely developments and expected results

The directors remain confident the Emeco Group will meet the earnings forecasts for the 2007 year
contained in the Prospectus.

In the opinion of the directors, disclosure of other information on likely developments in the Emeco Group
in future financial years and the expected results of those operations would be likely to result in
unreasonable prejudice to the Emeco Group, Accordingly such additional information has not been
included in this report.
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Directors interest in shares of the Company

The relevant interests of each Director in the shares, debentures, and rights or options over such shares or
debentures issued by the companies within the Emeco Group and other related bodies corporate, as notified
by the directors to the ASX in accordance with 5.205G(1) of the Corporations Act 2001, at the date of this
report are as follows:

Table 4 — Directors’ interests

Ordinary Options over
shares ordinary shares
Greg Minton 161,267 -
Laurie Freedman 18,000,000 4,800,000
Robin Adair 6,000,000 1,600,000
Alec Brennan 926,315 -
Stuart Fitton 388,028 -
Peter Johnston - -
Paul McCullagh 184,907 -

Remuneration report
Background {unaudited)

The Company does nat employ any employees. Most key executives of the Emeco Group are employed by
Emeco International Pty Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Prior to its removal from the official list of ASX, Emeco Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
was the sole listed entity within the Emeco Group. In May 2005, the Board of Emeco Ltd adopted a
Remuneration Committee Charter and, in accordance with the terms of the charter, established a
Remuneration Committee which reviewed and monitored remuneration policy for the entire Emeco Group
during FY 2006,

In June 2006, in anticipation of its admission to the ASX’s official list, the Company established a
Remuneration and Nomination Committee to supersede the Emeco Ltd Remuneration Committee.

The responsibilities and objectives of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee are, in relation to
remuneration matters, substantially the same as the responsibilities and objectives of the now defunct
Emeco Ltd Remuneration Committee.

Principles of remuneration (audited)

The Emeco Group remuneration policy is substantially reflected in the objectives of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee. The Committee’s objectives are to endeavour to ensure that:

» the Directors of the Company and senior management of the Group are remunerated fairly and
appropriately;

¢ the remuneration policies and outcomes of the Company strike an appropriate balance between the

interests of the Company’s shareholders, and rewarding and motivating the Group's executives and
employees in order to secure the long term benefits of their energy and loyalty; and
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¢ the human resources policies and practices are consistent with and complementary to the strategic
direction and human resources cbjectives of the Company as determined by the Board.

At the time of determining the remuncration of the key executives for FY 2006, the policy of the Company
was to set fixed remuneration at levels which would attract and retain appropriately qualified and
experienced executives capable of:

« fulfilling their respective roles within the Group;
» achieving the Group’s strategic objectives; and

* maximising Emeco Group earnings and the returns to shareholders.

Deltails of the clements comprising the remuncration of the Emeco Group’s key executives, including each
Director and cach of the five named Emeco Group exccutives wha reccived the highest remuneration in FY
2006 are set out in table 5. Table 5 does not include the following components of compensation because
they werc not provided 1o key executives during FY 2006: short term cash profit-sharing bonuses, long
term incentives distributed in cash, post employment benefits other than superannuation and share based
payments other than shares and units. Table 6 provides comparative information in relation to the
remuneration of the Emeco Group's key executives for the prior period 14 December 2004 to 30 June 2005.
The commencement date of this prior period, i.e. 14 December 2004, coincides with the date of
incorporation of Emeco Holdings Ltd.
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Directors’ report contd.
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Non - executive directors (audited)

As at 30 June 2006, the board of Emeco Holdings Ltd comprised six non-executive directors and two
executive directors. Two of the non-executive directors, Greg Minton and James Carnegie, were
representatives of private cquity funds advised by Archer Capital. Another two of the non-executive
directors, Paul McCullagh and Rob Koczkar, were representatives of private equity funds advised by
Pacific Equity Partners. None of these four non-executive directors of Emeco received any form of
remuncration during FY 2006.

Mr Alec Brennan was appointed as a director of the Company in August 2005. His remuneration as a
director for FY 2006 was paid in the form of the issue of 500,000 shares in the Company under the terms
of the Company’s Managememt Incentive Share Plan (MISP). The shares vest in equal propartions over 5
years. In accordance with the terms of the MISP, the Company provided Mr Brennan with an interest free
loan to fund the purchase of the shares, the key terms of which are described below, The issue of these
shares to Mr Brennan and the vesting of the shares does not depend on a performance condition because
they have been issued in lieu of cash remuneration. Further details regarding the issue of shares to Mr
Brennan are set out below.

Mr Stuart Fitton was appointed in April 2006. I1is remuneration as a director during FY 2006 comprised
a cash director’s fcc of $100,000 pa.

Executive directors and senior executives
Fixed remuneration {audited)

Fixed remuneration comprises base salary, employer superannuation contributions and other allowances
such as motor vehicle allowances and non-cash benefits,

Each executive’s fixed remuneration is reviewed and benchmarked against appropriate market
comparisons annually in September. The executive’s responsibilities, experience, qualifications,
performance and geographic location are aiso taken into account.

Emeco’s broad objective is to set fixed remuneration at levels which ensure the Company is able to
attract and retain the best available key executives.

Performance linked remuneration

Performance linked remuneration includes both short term incentives (STIs) and long term incentives
{LTIs).

LTI remuneration {(audited)

In FY 2006 LTIs did not form part of the remuneration of any key executives because their significant
shareholdings in the Company were considered to adequatcly align their interests with the interests of the
Company and its sharcholders and provide them with sufficient incentive to achieve the long term
objectives of the Emecoe Group.

However, as part of preparing the Company for the IPO, the board of the Company detcrmined that,
following the [PO and conditional on it occurring, the remuneration of the Managing Director and the
Chief Financial Officer should be restructured to include an LTI component.

On 4 August 2006, following the successful completion of the IPO, 4,800,000 options were issued to Mr
Freedman and 1,600,000 options were issued to Mr Adair under the Company’s Employee Incentive
Plan. Each option granted to Mr Freedman and Mr Adair entitles the holder to subscribe for an ordinary
share at a price of $1.925. The options will vest in three equal tranches and each will be subject to the
following vesting conditions:
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« for the financial year ending 30 June 2007, 1/3 of the Options will vest on the date that final audited
results for Emeco Holdings for that year are reteased, provided that Emeco Holdings has achieved an
Actual Earnings Per Share equal to or greater than the Forecast Eamings Per Share;

»  for the financial year ending 30 Junc 2008, 1/3 of the Options will vest on the date that final audited
results for Emeco Holdings for that year are reteased, provided that Emeco Holdings has achicved an |
Actual Eamnings Per Share equal 1o or greater than 110% of the Forecast Eamings Per Share; and

¢ for the financial year ending 30 June 2009, 1/3 of the Options will vest on the date that final audited
resuits for Emeco Holdings for that year are released, provided that Emeco Holdings has achieved an
Actual Earnings Per Share equal to or greater than 121% of the Forecast Earnings Per Share,

Mr Freedman's options vest only if he holds the position of Managing Director of the Company at the
time of vesting.

Mr Adair’s options vest only if he is an employee of the Company at the time of vesting or he is subject
to a deemed termination, ic the Company materially and substantiatly changes his duties beyond the
duties ordinarily performed by a Chief Financial Officer, other than with his agreement, or the Company
is removed from the official list of the ASX.

The options issued to Mr Freedman and Mr Adair expirc 5 years after their date of issue,
Short term incentive bonus payments for FY 2006 {audited)

Performance linked remuneration was paid to the Executive Directors and key executives in the form of
bonus payments for FY 2006. For key executives other than the Managing Director, performance
indicators and the Managing Director’s assessment of the executive’s overall contribution to the
performance of the Emeco Group were considered in determining bonus payments.

Performance indicators were identified for cach executive on the basis of their particular functional
responsibilitics within the Emeco Group. Most of these indicators were principally based on business unit
or group financial performance and were used to assess the performance of the exccutive and the extent
to which the executive fulfilled his responsibilities and contributed to the performance of a particular
business unit or to the Emeco Group in meeting its strategic objectives, flowever, not all of the indicators
were financial; for cxample, some of them relate to the sustainability of the Emeco Group (e.g. safety
performance) or to principles of good governunce (e.g. reporting and disclosure issues).

As a general rule bonus payments to Executive Directors and key executives, other than the Managing
Director and the President, North America, were capped so that an executive could not reccive a bonus
which ¢xceeds an amount equal to 20% of the recipient’s annual salary.

Mr Freedman was entitled to a bonus of up to 30% of his annual salary for FY 2006. His bonus was

determined by reference to the percentage by which ERITDA for the Emeco Group for the year exceeded
budgeted EBITDA as follows:

Table 6 — CEO bonus structure

% by which EBITDA for 2005/2006 % of bonus tc be paid
exceeds budgeted EBITDA

>0% to 7.5% 30%

>7.5% to 15% 65%

>15% 100%
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This direct linkage of Mr Freedman’s bonus to the profit performance of the Emeco Group was
considered appropriate in light of his role as Managing Director. The directors assessed whether Mr
Freedman had satisfied this performance condition by reviewing the audited EBITDA result for FY 2006
and comparing it with the budgetcd result.

The performance indicators adopted to determine Mr Adair’s entitlement to an STI bonus reflected the
directors’ expectation that the Chief Financial Officer should ensure that the planned rapid expansion of
the Emeco Group in FY 2006 would be facilitated by sound capital management and would be supported
by adequate corporate resources and the implementation of appropriate corporate services, systems and
processes. The directors assessed whether Mr Adair had satisfied these performance indicators by
assessing the Emeco Group's success in achieving its financial and corporate objectives for FY 2006, the
extent to which businesses acquired during the year had been successfully integrated into the Emeco
Group and the success of the Company’s debt and equity capital raisings during the year.

Mr Tilbrook commenced employment as the General Manager, Australian Rental Operatiens on

I October 2005. Prior to 1 October 2005, Mr Tilbrook was the General Manager Rental, Western Region.
60% of his ST1 bonus was dependent upen actual EBIT of the Australian rental division for FY 2006
exceeding the budgeted result for the year by 15%. This direct linkage of the major proportion of Mr
Tilbrook’s bonus to the profit performance of the business unit for which he is ultimately responsible was
considcred appropriate because it served to align his interests with the interests of the Company and the
shareholders in achieving optimal performance of the Australian rental division. The Managing Director
asscssed whether Mr Tilbrook had satisfied this performance condition by reviewing the actual audited
EBIT result for FY 2006 and comparing it with the budgeted result. The critcria for the remaining
proportion of Mr Tilbrook’s STI bonus were performance related and at risk, but did not consist of
financial performance hurdles.

20% of Mr Turner’s STI bonus was dependent upon actual EBIT of the Emeco Parts business exceeding
actuat EBIT for the 2004/2005 year by 10%. The allocation of 20% of Mr Turner’s bonus to the
performance of the Emeco Parts business, a business unit for which he is ultimately responsible, was
considered appropriate in light of the breadth of Mr Tumer’s responsibilities as General Manager, Emeco
Parts, Maintenance and Plant and the need to establish a number of separate performance criteria in
respect of his other responsibilities. The direct linkage of a significant proportion of Mr Tumner’s bonus
| to the profit performance of Emeco Parts was considered appropriate because it served to align his
interests with the interests of the Company and the shareholders in achieving optimal performance of the
Emeco Parts business. The Managing Director assessed whether Mr Turner had satisfied this
| performance condition by reviewing the actual EBIT result for FY 2006 and comparing it with the
audited result for the 2005 year. The criteria for the remaining proportion of Mr Turner’s STI bonus were
performance related and at risk, but did not consist of financial performance hurdles.

Mr Jeffery was employed in Australia as the General Manager Rental, Eastern Region until 22 January
2006. Mr Jeffery commenced his employment with Emeco Equipment (USA) LLC as President, North
America on 23 January 2006. Mr Jeffery’s bonus entitlement for FY 2006 was determined by refercnce
to his period of employment during the year as General Manager, Rental Eastern Region. 60% of Mr
Jeffery’s STI bonus was dependent upon actual EBIT of the Qid and NSW rental businesses for the
period from 30 June to 31 December 2005 exceeding the budgeted result for the period by 10%. This
direct linkage of the major proportion of Mr Jeffery’s bonus to the profit performance of the business
units for which he was ultimately responsiblc was considered appropriate because it served 1o align his
intercsts with the interests of the Company and the shareholders in achieving optimal performance of the
two regional rental businesses. The Managing Director assessed whether Mr JefTery had satisficd this
performance cendition by reviewing the actual EBIT result for the half ycar and comparing it with the
budgeted result. The criteria for the remaining proportion of Mr Jeffery’s STI bonus were performance
related and at risk but did not consist of financial performance hurdles.
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Bonuses for each other senior exccutive were determined by the Managing Drirector taking into account
agreed performance indicators and the Managing Director's assessment of the overall performance of the
executive in contributing to the earnings of the Emeco Group.

Analysis of bonuses included in remuneration (unaudited)

Details of the vesting profile of the short term incentive cash bonuses awarded to executives referred Lo
in table 5 are set out below:

Table 7 — Key executive STI vesting profile

Short term incentive bonus
Included in % vested in | % forfeited
remuneration {A) year in year {B)
$

Mr L Freedman 107,250 65 35
Mr R Adair 70,000 100 0
Mr D Jeffery 26,500 50 50
Mr W Malvern 22,000 50 50
Mr D Tilbrook 50,000 1060 0
Mr M Turner 40,000 80 20

Notes:

(A) Amounts included in remuneration for FY 2006 represents the amount that vested in the year
based on the achievement of personal goals and satisfaction of performance conditions. No
amounts vest in future financial years in respect of the bonus scheme for FY 2006.

(B} Amounts forfeited are due to the performance or service criteria not being met in relation to FY

2006.
Equity instruments (audited)
During FY 2006, the Company made share based payments to Mr Brennan and Mr Parish under the

Company’s Management Incentive Share Plan (MISP). Details of the share issues made to each of them
under the MISP are set out below:
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Table 8 — MISP issues to directors and key executives

Alec Brennan Rodney Parish
Number of shares issued under 500,000 600,000
the MISP (A)
Issue price of the MISP shares $0.61 $0.61
Date of Issue 18 August 2005 5 September 2005 (B)
Amount of Company loan in $305,000 $366,000
respect of MISP shares
outstanding at reporting date
Highest amount of indebtedness £305,000 $366,000
during the period
Fair value recognised as $33,597 $21,587
remuneration during the year

Notes:

(A) The number of shares shown above is the number now on issue to each of Mr Brennan and Mr Parish following
the 2 for 1 share split which preceded the [PO.

(B} Mr Parish was issued 300,000 ordinary shares in Emeco (UK) Ltd on 5 September 2005 which had an identical
value to the shares in Emeco Holdings Ltd. As part of the corporate reorganisation which occurred prior to the
[PO, Mr Parish’s shares in Emeco (UK) Ltd were acquired by Emeco Holdings Ltd in exchange for shares in
Emeco Ioldings Ltd and on the same terms as those on which he held the shares in Emeco (UK) Ltd.

Key terms and conditions of the issue of shares to Mr Brennan under the MISP are as follows:

e In accordance with the terms of the MISP the Company provided Mr Brennan with an interest-free,
limited recourse loan (Loan) to enable him to subscribe for the MISP shares.

e The shares vest over a § year period with the first 20% of the shares vesting 1 year after the date of
issue and a further 20% vesting each year thereafter until all of the shares have vested.

¢ If Mr Brennan’s appointment as a dircctor is terminated prior to all of his MISP shares vesting, then
in relation to those shares which have not vested, the Company is required to buy them back, cancel
them or transfer them to a nominee at a price equal to the Loan amount outstanding in respect of
them and to set off payment of the purchase price against the Loan amount owed to the Company. In
relalion to those shares which have vested, the Company must buy them back or transfer them to a
nominee of the board and pay to Mr Brennan a purchase price equal to their market value, subject to
the Company setting off the Loan amount outstanding in respect of the vested shares.

¢ Subject to the approval of the board, the Loan can be repaid at any time but must be repaid by the
tenth anniversary of the commencement date of the MISP.

e  Any dividends or capital distributions which may become payable in respect of thc MISP shares may
be applied by the Company in reducing the amount of the loan.
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Key terms and conditions of the issue of shares to Mr Parish under the MISP are as follows:

s  In accordance with the terms of the MISP the Company provided Mr Parish with an interest-fice,
limited recourse loan {Loan) to enable him to subscribe for the MISP shares.

s The shares vest over a 5 year period with the first 25% of the shares vesting 2 years after the issue
date. The shares then vest on an annual basis until all of the shares have vested on the 5" anniversary
of their issue.

e If Mr Parish’s employment with the Emecoe Group is terminated prior to all of his MISP shares
vesting, then in relation to those shares which have not vested, the Company is required to buy them
back, cancel them or transfer them to a nominee at a price equal to the Loan atnount outstanding in
respect of them and to set off the payment against the Loan amount owed to the Company. In
relation to those shares which have vested, the Company must buy them back or transfer them 1o a
nominee of the board and pay to Mr Parish a purchase price equal to their market value, subject to
the Company setting oft the Looan amount outstanding in respect of the vested shares,

*  Subject to the approval of the board, the Loan can be repaid at any time but must be repaid by the
tenth anniversary of the commencement date of the MISP,

*  Any dividends or capital distributions which may become payable in respect of the MISP shares may
be applied by the Company in reducing the amount of the loan.

The share issues under the MISP to Mr Brennan and Mr Parish and the time based vesting conditions in
~ respect of the shares were not dependent on the satisfaction of a performance condition because in both
cases the issue of shares to them and the inclusion of time bascd vesting conditions in the terms of issue
were intended to provide them with an incentive to remain with the Emeco Group. That is, the terms
upon which the shares were issued to Mr Brennan and Mr Parish were intended to operate as a retention
incentive arrangement rather than a performance incentive arrangement.

Service contracts (audited)

Other than Mr Freedman and Mr leffery, each of the key executives named in tablc 5 were employed by
Emeco International Pty Ltd during FY 2006 pursuant to contracts which provide for an indefinite term
and which arc terminable on cither party giving 6 months’ nolice or on the payment by Emeco
International Pty Ltd to the executive of up to 6 months’ salary in lieu of notice. No termination
payments other than salary in lieu of notice and accrued statutory leave entitlements are payable under
these contracts.

Mr Freedman was employed by Emeco International Pty Ltd during FY 2006 pursuant to a contract
which provided for an indefinite term and which were terminable on either party giving 12 months’
nolice or on the payment by Emeco International Pty Ltd to the executive of up to 12 menths’ salary in
liew of notice. No termination payments other than salary in lieu of notice and accrued statutory leuve
entitlements were payable under Mr Freedman’s contract.

Mr Jeffery is employed by Emeco Equipment {(USA) LLC pursuant to a contract which provides for a
fixcd term expiring on 31 December 2008, subject to either party being able to give 6 months notice or
on the payment by Emeco Equipment (USA) LLC to Mr Jeffery of up to 6 months’ salary in lieu of
notice, No termination payments other than salary in lieu of notice and accrued leave entitlements are
payable.

Subsequent to the end of FY 2006 and as part of the process of preparing the Company for the IPO, new
service contracts were entercd into with Mr Freedman and Mr Adair.

Under his new contract, Mr Laurie Freedman has agreed to act as Managing Director of the Group until
at least 31 December 2008. Under this contract, Mr Freedman's remuneration has been structured so
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that he receives a base amount of $850,000 per annum (exclusive of superannuation and other
entitlements outlined in his contract), together with the capacity to qualify for an STI performance bonus
each year of up to 100% of the base amount calculated by reference to the earnings per share
performance of Emeco Holdings. For the 2006/2007 financial year, Mr Freedman is entitled to receive
his STI performance bonus if actual eamnings per share cqual or exceed forecast carnings per share. The
contract may be terminated by either Mr Freedman or Emeco upon provision of 12 months notice of
termination, although Mr Freedman has agreed that he will not provide such notice until at least ]
January 2008. Emeco may also terminate Mr Frecdman's employment immediately, by making a
payment in lieu of 12 months remuneration package, which would be the total of his base amount, plus
superannuation and car allowance, being an amount of approximatcly $1,122,000.

Under his ncw contract Mr Adair has agreed to act as Chief Financial Officer of the Group until at least
30 June 2009. Under his contract, Mr Adair's remuneration has been structurcd so that he receives a base
amount of $450,000 per annum (exclusive of superannuation and other entitlements outlined in his
contract), together with the capacity to qualify for an STI performance bonus each year of up to 50% of
the base amount calculated by reference to the earnings per share performance of Emeco Holdings. For
the 2006/2007 financial ycar, Mr Adair is entitled to reccive his STI performance bonus if actual earnings
per share equal or exceed forecast eamings per share. The contract may be terminated by cither Mr
Adair or Emeco upon provision of 12 months notice of termination, although Mr Adair has agreed that he
will not provide such notice until at least 1 January 2009. Emeco may also terminate Mr Adair's
employment immediately, by making a payment in lieu of 12 months remuneration package, which
would be the total of his base amount, plus superannuation and car allowance, being an amount of
approximatcly $585,000. If Mr Adair’s dutics are materially altered during the term of his employment or
Emeco Holdings delists from ASX, Mr Adair may receive payment cqual to 12 months of his base
amount plus the maximum performance bonus amount for the relevant financial year. In addition, the
Options then granted to Mr Adair will immediately vest.

Remuneration and the Company's performance (unaudited)

The Company was incorporated as a proprietary company on 14 December 2004, It is therefore not
possible to discuss the relationship between the Company’s remuncration policy and the Company’s
performance for the previous 4 financial ycars.

However, based on the pro forma historical information set out in section 7 of the Prospectus, and the
consolidated results set out in the Company’s financial statements for FY 2006, the Emeco Group has
achicved a compound annual growth rate in EBITA of 37.6% for the period from FY 2003 to FY 2006.

The directors consider that the remuncration policics of the Emeco Group while it was privately held
were successful in aligning the interests of the senior managers with the interests of the Emeco Group
and its former owners and this success is reflected in the eamings growth of the Group.

The directors also consider that the remuncration policies and practices adopted and approved by the
Emeco Ltd Remuncration Commiitce for the Emeco Group’s directors, secretary and senior managers for
FY 2006 provided them with appropriate rewards and motivated them to continue to perform in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders.

In relation to the current 2005/2006 year, the Emeco Group’s EBITA increased by 41.7% from the pro
forma results for the 2004/2005 year. This increase in EBITA is in part attributable to the alignment of
management’s interests with those of the Company and its sharcholders which is in turn partly
altributable to the Company’s remuneration policies. The increase in the Emeco Group’s earnings aver
the past 5 years has resulted in a substantial increase in shareholder wealth, some of which was realised
by the previous shareholders in the sale of their shares in the Emeco Group to senior management and
funds controlled by Archer Capital and Pacific Equity Partners in January 2003, and a substantial
proportion of which was realised by some of the Company's existing sharehoiders in the [PO.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, each of the senior managers wilt continue to maintain a significant
shareholding in the Company for the entire 2006/2007 financial year.
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Indemnification and insurance of directors, officers and
auditors

The Company has entered into a deed of access, indemnity and insurance with each of the following
current directors, Mr G Minton, Mr R Adair, Mr A Brennan, Mr S Fitton, Mr L Freedman, Mr P
McCullagh and Mr P Johnston, and with each of the following former directors, Mr J Carnegie and Mr R
Koczkar, Under the terms of the deed, the Company indemnifies the director or former director, to the
extent permitted by law, for liabilities incurred as an officer of the Company. The deed provides that the
Company must advance the director reasonable costs incurred by the director in defending certain
proceedings or appearing before an inquiry or hearing of a government agency.

Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company has paid premiums in respect of contracts
insuring the current and former directors and officers of the Emeco Group, including senior executives,
against liabilities incurred by such a director, officer or executive to the extent permitted by the
Corporations Act 2001. The contracts of insurance prohibit disclosure of the nature of the liability cover
and the amount of the premium,

The Emeco Group has not indemnified its auditors, KPMG.

Non-audit services

During the ycar KPMG, the Company’s auditors, has performed certain other services in addition to their
statutory duties.

The Board has considered the non audit services provided during the year by the auditor and is satisfied
that the provision of those non-audit services during the year by the auditor is compatible with, and did
not compromise, the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the foliowing
reasons:

» all non-audit services were subject to the Cerporate governance procedures adopted by the
Company,

«  the non audit services provided do not undermine the general principles relating to auditor
independence as sct out in Professional Statement ¥ Professional independence, as they did not
involve reviewing or auditing the auditors own work, acting in a management or decision making
capacity for the Company, acting as an advocate for the Company or jointly sharing the risks and
rewards,

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under Section 307C of the Corporation Act
2001 is included in the director’s report.

Details of fees paid to the Company’s auditors for non audit services are found in Note 4 of the financial
report.

Rounding

The amounts contained in this report and in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest $1,000
(where rounding is applicable) under the option available to the Company under ASIC Class Order
08/100 dated 10 July 1998. The Company is an entity to which the Class Order applies.

Managing Director

Dated at Perth the 12th day of September 2006
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Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001
To: the directors of Emeco Holdings Limited

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial
year ended 30 June 2006 there have been:

(1) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Partner

Perth
12 September 2006

KPMG, an Austrahan partnership, is part of Ihe KPMG Intermational
notwork, KPMG International is a Swiss cooparativa.




Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Income Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Revenue from rental income
Revenue from the sale of machines and parts
Revenue from maintenance services

Changes in machinery and parts inventory
Machinery and parts purchases and consumables
Repairs and maintenance

Employee expenses

Hired in equipment and labour

Gross profit

Other income

Other expense

Share of loss of joint venture entities accounted
for using the equity method

EBITDAY

Depreciation expense

Amortisation expensc

ERIT®

Financial income

Financial expenses

Profit/(loss) before income tax expense
Income tax expense

Net Profit/(Loss)

Attributed to:

Equity holders of the parent
Minority interests

Net Profit/(Loss)

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the
ordinary equity holders of the company:

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

Note

5(c)

35
35

Consolidated

The Company

Period Period
14 December 04 )4 December 04
2006 10 30 June 05 2006 to 30 Junc O3
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000
217,050 79,571 - -
154,157 69,286 - -
11,638 3,295 - -
382,845 152,152 - -
{35,660) 743 - -
(94,048) (60,243) - -
(57,333) (20,580) - -
(22,306) (7,966) - -
(5,589)  (2,525) - -
167,909 61,581 - -
1,730 1,167 - -
(27,699) (14,126) (2,0313) {710}
- (4) - -
141,940 48,618 {2,033) (710}
(54,005) (14,990) - -
{10,509) (9,485) - -
77,426 24,143 (2,033) (710)
i,184 407 - -
(44,792) (16,902) - -
33,818 7,648 (2,033) (710)
(11,148) (2,565) 565 213
22,670 5,083 (1,468) (497)
15,166 5,566 (1,468) (497)
7,504 (483) - -
22,670 5,083 (1,468) {497)
2006
5
0.126
0.115

The income statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial

statements set out on pages 39 to 93.

Y EBITDA - Earnings before intcrest expense, tax, depreciation and amortisation

@ EBIT - Earnings before interest expense and tax.

Emeco Holdings Ltd
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities

Balance Sheets
as at 30th June 2006

Current Assets

Cash asscts

Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Current tax asset

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables

Intangible assets

Investments accounted for using the

equity method

Property, plant and cquipment

Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Total non-current assets

Total assets

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Interest bearing liabilitics
Current tax liabilities
Provisions

Total current liabilities

Non-current Liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities
Trade and other payables
Deferred tax liabilities
Provisions

Total non-cureent liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity

Issued capital
Reserves

Retained carnings/(accumulated toss)
Total equity altributable to equity

holders of the parent
Minority interest
Total equity

Note

10
11
12

14
L5

16

13

17
18

21

I8
19

21

22
23
23

23

Consolidated The Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
19,240 11,039 - -
87,011 38,262 27,239 6,178
115,438 79,778 - -
4,018 - - -
225,707 129,079 27,239 6,178
8,379 1,737 167,796 119,501
214,945 211,824 - -
58 58 - -
442,953 207,680 - -
- 737 - -
- 16,376 - -
666,335 438,412 167,796 119,501
892,042 567,491 195,035 125,679
42,627 22,840 20,208 6,286
12,465 4,514 - -
3,754 1,060 2,714 33]
2,594 1,826 - -
61,440 30,240 22,922 6,617
576,693 374,321 - -
- - - 58
17,120 6,333 - -
520 483 - -
594,333 381,137 - 58
655,773 411,377 22,922 6,675
236,269 156,114 172,113 119,004
174,078 119,501 174,078 119,501
1,195 - - -
20,732 5,566 (1,965) (497)
196,005 125,067 172,013 119,004
40,264 31,047 - -
236,269 156,114 172,113 119,004

The balance sheets are to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial

statements sct out on pages 39 to 93.
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Statements of recognised income and expensc
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Effective portion of changes in fair value on cash flow
hedges, net of tax {movement for the year)

Exchange diffcrences on translation of foreign operations
Net income recognised directly in equity

Profit for the year

Total recognised income and expense for the year

Total recognised income and expense for the year
attributed to

Equity holders of the parent

Minority interest

Total recognised income and expense for the year

Effects of change in accounting policy -
financial instruments

Equity holders of the parent

Minority interest

Note

The statements of recognised income and expense is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and
forming part of the financial statements set out on pages 39 to 93.

Emeco Holdings Ltd

Consolidated The Company
Period Period
14 December 04 14 Decemiber 04
2006 to 30 June 05 2006 to 30 June 05
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,195 - - -
1,713 1,031 - -
2,908 1,031 - -
22,670 5,083 {1,468) (497)
25,578 6,114 {1,468) (497)
16,361 5,566 (1,468) (497)
9,217 548 - -
25,578 6,114 (1,468) (497)
1,195 - - -
1,195 - - -
37




Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Statements of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Consolidated .The Company
Period Period
14 December 04 14 December 04
Note 2006 to 30 Junc 05 2006 to 30 June 05
$'000 $'000 000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers 331,983 152,064 - -
Cash payments to suppliers and employees (241,743) (98,242} (1,883) (58)
Dividends received - 425 - -
Interest received 1,184 407 - -
Interest paid (41,18%9) {10,253) - -
Income tax paid (11,654) (4,544) {4,248) -
Net cash provided by/(used in)
operating activities 27(ii) 38,581 39,857 (6,131) (58)
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds on disposal of non-current asscts 8,135 1,453 - -
Payment for controlled entities (net of cash acquired) 28 (47,729)  (372,173) - -
Payment for property, plant and equipment (219,325) (44,333) - -
Net cash used in investing activities {258,919)  (415,053) - -
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceed from issue of shares 50,577 150,000 50,577 119,501
Proceed from borrowings:
Loans 263,594 239,911 - -
Convertible notes - 125,000 - -
Loan from controlled entity - - - 58
Loan to controlled entity - - (44,446} (119,501}
Repayment of borrowings (66,662)  (109,205) - -
Payment for deferred borrowing costs {2,580) (17,541) - “
Finance lease payments (16,568) (1,930) - -
Net cash provided by financing activities 228,361 386,233 6,131 58
Net increase in cash held 8,023 11,039 - -
Cash at the beginning of the period 11,039 - - -
Effects of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 178 - - -
Cash at the end of the financial period 27(i) 19,240 11,039 - -

The statements of cash flows are to be read in conjunction with the notes 1o the financial statements sct
out on pages 39 to 93.
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 Junc 2006

I Significant accounting policies

Emeco Holdings Limited {the “Company”) is a company domiciled in Australia. The consolidated
financial report of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2006 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “consolidated entity”} and the consolidated entity’s interest
in associates and jointly controlled entities.

Emeco Holdings Limited was incorporated on 14 December 2004,

The consolidated financial report was authorised for issue by the directors on 12 Septembet 2006.

(a) Statement of Compliance
The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance
with Australian Accounting ‘Standards (‘ AASBs”} adopted by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board (*AASB’) and the Corporations Act 2001. International Financial Reporting
Standards (*IFRSs’) form the basis of Australian Accounting Standards (* AASBs’) adopted by
the AASB, and for the purpose of this report are called Australian equivalents to IFRS
(*AIFRS') to distinguish from previous Australian GAAP. The financial reports of the
consolidated entity and the Company also comply with IFRSs and interpretations adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board except that the Company has not complied with IFRS
because it has elected to not provide parent company disclosure under AASB 139, which is
permitted by under AIFRs.

This is the consolidated entity’s first financial report prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards, being AIFRS and IFRS, and AASB | First-Time Adoption of Australian
Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards has been applied. An explanation
of how the transition to AIFRS has affccted the reported financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the consolidated entity and the Company is provided in note 32.

Basis of Preparation
The financial report is presented in Australian dollars.

The financial report is prepared on the historical cost basis except that derivative financial
instruments are stated at their fair value.

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards
requires management 1o make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and cxpenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are bascd on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. These accounting policies have
been consistently applied by each entity in the consolidated entity.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of Australian Accounting Standards that
have a significant effect on the financial report and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year discussed in note {w}.
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

| Significant accounting policies cont’d

The accounting policies st out below have been applicd consistently to all periods presented in
the consolidated financial report and in preparing an opening AIFRS balance sheet being 14
December 2004 for the purposes of the transition to Australian Accounting Standards — AIFRS
except AASB 132: Financial instruments: Disclosure and Presentation and AASB 139
Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This change in accounting policy has
been adopted in accordance with the transition rules contained in AASB 1, which does not
require the restatement of comparative information for financial instruments within the scope of
AASB 132 and AASB 139. The impact of not adopting these standards in the comparative
period have been quantified in note 33.

The accounting policies have been applied consistently by all entities in the consolidated entity.
Early adoption of standards

The following standards and amendments were available for early adoption from 1 July 2005
but have not been applied to the consolidated entity in these financial statements:

STANDARD AASB Ref. Per Periods Starting
AASB 119: Employee Benefits (jii) 2005-3 1 Jan 06
AASD 101: Presentation of Financial Statements (ii) 2005-3, 10 1 Jan 06, 07
AASB 114: Segment Reporting (if) 2005-10 1 Jan 07
AASB 117: Leases (ii) 2005-10 | Jan 07
AASB 133: Earnings per Share (iii) 2005-10 1 Jan 07
AASB 132: Financial Instruments Disclosure and 2005-10 I Jan 07
Presentation {ii) 2005-4,9 1 Jan 06
AASB 139; Financial Instruments Recognition and 2005-1,4,5,9 1 Jan 06
Measurement (i) (ii) 2005-10 1 Jan 07
AASB 7: Financial Instruments Disclosure (i) AASB7 1 Jan 07
AASB 3: Business Combinations (iii) 2005-6 1 Jan 06
AASB I: First Time Adoption of AIFRS (iv) (iii} 2005-4,510 1 Jan 06, 07
AASB 4: Insurance Contracts (iii) 2005-9, 10 1 Jan 06
AASB 1023: General Insurance Contracts (iii) 2005-4,9 1 Jan 06
AASB 1038: Life Insurance Contracts (iii) 2005-4 1 Jan 06

(i)  AASB 2005-10 Amendments to Accounting Standards (September 2005) includes
amendments to AASB 139: Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement
effective from | January 2007. The amendments restrict the application of “at fair value
through profit and loss”. Early adoption of the standard has no financial impact on the
consoclidated entity.

(i)  Amendments and standards primarily provide changes to current disclosure requirements.
(iily The standards, and therefore the amendments, are not relevant to the consolidated entity.

The financial report is prepared on the historical cost basis except that derivative financial
instruments are stated at their fair value.

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 (updated
by CO 05/641 effective 28 July 2005 and CO 06/51 effective 31 January 2006) and in
accordance with that Class Order, amounts in the financial report and Directors’ Report have
been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated.

Emeco Heldings Ltd 40




Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entitics
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

! Significant accounting policies cont'd

(<)
(i}

(i)

Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are cntities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the
power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policics of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the condensed consolidated interim financial report from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

Investment in subsidiaries are carried at their cost of acquisition in the Company’s financial
statements.

Associates

Associates arc those entities for which the consolidated entity has significant influence, but not
control, over the financial and operating policies. The condensed consolidated interim financial
statements include the consolidated entity’s share of the total recognised gains and losses of
associates on an equity accounted basis, from the date that significant influence commences
until the date that significant influence ceases. When the consolidated entity’s share of losses
exceeds its interest in an associate, the consolidated entity’s carrying amount is reduced to nil
and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the consolidated entity
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of an associate.

(iii) Joint venture

Joint ventures arc those entities over whose activities the consolidated entity has joint control,
established by contractual agreement.

Jointly controlled entities

In the consolidated financial report, investments in jointly contrelled entities are accounted for
using equity accounting principles. Investments in joint venture entities arc carried at the lower
of the equity accounted amount and recoverable amount.

The consolidated entity’s share of the jointly controlled entity’s net profit or loss recognised in
the consolidated income statement from the date joint control commenced until the date joint
control ceases. Other mavements in reserves are recognised directly in consolidated reserves,

(iv) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intragroup balances, and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising from
intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with associates and jointly controlled entities are
eliminated to the extent of the consolidated entity’s interest in the entity with adjustments made
to the “Investment in associates™ and “Share of associates net profit” accounts,

Unrealised losscs are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Gains and losses are recognised as the contributed asscts are consumed or sold by the associates
and jointly controlled entities or, if not consumed or sold by the associate or jointly controfled
entity, when the consolidated entity’s interest in such entities is disposed of.
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

1 Significant accounting policies cont’d

(d)
{i)

ity

(e)

Emeco Holdings Ltd

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forcign currencies at the balance
sheet date are transiated to Australian dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date.
Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the income statement.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary
assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
to Australian dollars at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on consolidation, are translated to Austratian dollars at foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance shect date. The revenues and expenses of foreign operations, arc translated to
Australian dollars at rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transitions. Foreign cxchange differences arising on retranslation are recognised dircetly in a
separate component of cquity.

Derivative financial instruments

Current period policy

The consolidated entity uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign
exchange and interest rate risks arising from operational, financing and investment activitics. In
accordance with its treasury policy, the consolidated entity does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes. However, derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are accounted for as trading instruments.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair valuc. Subsequent to initial
recognition, derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value. Thc gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss. However, where
derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends ont
the nature of the item being hedged (see accounting policy f).

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the consolidated entity would
reccive or pay to terminate the swap at the balance sheet date, taking into account current
interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties. The fair value of
forward exchange contracts is their quoted market price at the balance sheet date, being the
present value of the quoted forward price.

Comparative period policy

The consolidated entity is exposed to changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates from
its activities. The consolidated entity uses the following derivative financial instruments to
hedge these risks: interest rate swaps, forward rate agrecments and forward foreign exchange
contracts. Derivative financial instruments are not held for speculative purposcs.

The quantitative effect of the change in accounting policy is st out in note 33.
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

1 Significant accounting policies cont’d

(f) Hedging
Current period policy
Cash flow hedges
Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows
of a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecasted transaction, the cffective part of
any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in equity. When
the forecasted transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-
financial liability, or the forecast transaction for a non-financial asset or non-financial liabitity
the associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and included in the initial cost or
other carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability. If a hedge of'a forecasted
transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability,
then the associated gains and losses that were recognised directly in equity are reclassificd into
profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability assumed
affects profit or toss (i.e., when interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding two policy statements, the
associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects
profit or loss. The ineffective part of any gain or loss is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity revokes
designation of the hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction still is cxpected to
oceur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity and is recognised in accordance
with the above policy when the transaction occurs. 1 the hedged transaction is no longer
expected to take place, then the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Comparative period policy

Transactions are designated as a hedge of the anticipated specific purchase or sale of goods or
services, purchase of qualifying assets, or an anticipated interest transaction, only when they are
expected to reduce exposure to the risks being hedged, are designated prospectively so that it is
clear when an anticipated transaction has or has not occurred and it is probable the anticipated
transaction will occur as designatcd.

Gains or losses on the hedge arising up to the date of the anticipated transaction, together with
any costs or gains arising at the time of entering into the hedge, arc deferred and included in the
measurement of the anticipated transaction when the transaction has occurred as designated.
Any gains or losses on the hedge transaction after that date are included in the income
statcment.

The nct amounts receivable or payable under forward foreign exchange contracts and the
associated deferred gains or losses are recorded on the balance sheet from the date of inception
of the hedge transaction. When recognised, the net receivables or payables are revalued using
the foreign currency current at reporting date.

The net amounts receivable or payable under currency, interest rate and commodity swaps,
forward rate agreements and futures contracts and the associated deferred gains or losses are not
recorded on the balance sheet until the hedge transaction occurs. When recognised the net
receivables or payables are revalued using the interest or commodity rates current at reporting
date,
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

I Significant accounting policies cont’d

{2
(i)

(i)

When the anticipated transaction is no longer expected to occur as designated, the deferred gains
or losses relating to the hedged transaction are recoghised immediately in the income statement.

Where a hedge transaction is terminated early and the anticipated transaction is still expected to
accur as designated, the deferred gains or losses that arose on the hedge prior to its termination
continue to be deferred and are included in the measurement of the purchase or sale or interest
transaction when it occurs. Where a hedge transaction is terminated early because the
anticipated transaction is no longer expected to occur as designated, defcrred gains or losses that
arose on the hedge prior to its termination are included in the income statement for the period.

Where a hedge is redesignated as a hedge of another transaction, gains or losses arising on the
hedge prior to its redesignation are only deferred where the original anticipated transaction is
still expected to occur as designated. When the original anticipated transaction is no longer
expected Lo occur as designated, any gains or losses relating to the hedge instrument are
included in the income statement for the period.

Gains or losses that arise prior to and upon the maturity of transactions entered into under hedge
rollover strategies are deferred and included in the measurement of the hedged anticipated
transaction if the transaction is still expected to occur as designated. If the anticipated
transaction is no longer expected to occur as designated, the gains or losses are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation (see
below) and impairment losses (see accounting policy 1). The cost of self-constructed asscts
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads. The cost of self-constructed assets and acquired assets includes (i) the initial
estimate at the time of installation and during the period of use, when relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and (i)
changes in the measurement of existing liabilities recognised for these costs resulting from
changes in the timing or outflow of resources required to settle the obligation or from changes in
the discount rate.

Leased assets
Leased in terms of which the consolidated entity assumes substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership are classificd as finance leases.

(iii) Subscquent costs

The consolidated entity recognises in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment the cost of replacing part of such an item when that cost is incurred if it is probable
that the future economic benefits embodicd within the item will flow to the consolidated entity
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs are recognised in the income
statement as an expense as incurred.

(iv) Depreciation

Emeco Holdings Ltd

Items of property, plant and equipment, excluding frechold tand, arc depreciated over their
estimated useful lives and are charged to the income statement. Estimates of remaining useful
lives, residual values and the depreciation method are made on a regular basis, with annual re-
assessments for major items.

Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of intemmally constructed assets,
from the time an asset is completed and held ready for use. Where subsequent expenditure is
capitalised into the asset, the estimated useful life of the total new asset is reassessed and
depreciation charged accordingly.




Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

1 Significant accounting policies cont’d

Depreciation on buildings, leasehold improvements, furniture, fixture and fittings, office
equipment, motor vehicles and sundry plant is calculated on a straight-line basis. Depreciation
on plant and equipment is calculated on machine hours worked over their estimated useful life.
The expected useful lives is as follows:

Leasehold Improvements 15 years
Plant and Equipment 3 — 15 ycars
Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings 10 years
Office Equipment 3 - 10 years
Motor Vehicles 5 years
Sundry Plant 7 - 10 years

(h) Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill
Business Combinations
All business combinations arc accounted for by applying the purchase method. Goodwill
represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units and is no longer amortised but is tested annually for impairment (see
accounting policy 1). In respect of associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the investment in the associate.

Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is recognised directly in profit or loss.

{ii} Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the consolidated entity are stated at cost fess
accumulated amortisation (see below) and impairment losses (see accounting pelicy 1).

(iii) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the
future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure is expensed as incurred.

(iv) Contract intangibles
Contract intangibles represent the consideration paid for the identifiable contract assets acquired
as part of a business combination.

(v) Amortisation
Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of intangible assets unless such lives arc indefinite. Goodwill is systematically
tested for impairment at each annual balance sheet date. Other intangible assets are amortised
from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Contract intangibles 0 — 4 years
Software 0 —3 years

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at their amortised cost less impairment losses (sce
accounting policy 1).
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Significant accounting policies cont’d

@

(k)

U

0]

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses.

The cost of other inventories is based on the first-in first-out principle and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition.

Cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances and call deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the consolidated entity’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the consolidated entity’s assets, other than inventorics (see accounting
policy j), employee benefit assets (see accounting policy n) and deferred tax assets (sce
accounting policy s), are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated (see accounting policy I{i)).

For goodwill, assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets that are not yet
available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated annually.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset of its cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income
statement unless the assct has previously been revalued, in which case the impairment loss is
recognised as a reversal to the extent of that previous revaluation with any excess recognised
through profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

Goodwill assets were tested for impairment at 30 June 2006 as part of the Company’s process of
annually testing goodwill for impairment. No impairment was recognised.

Calculation of recoverable amount

Impairment of receivables is not recognised until objective evidence is available that a loss
event has occurred. Significant receivables are individually asscssed for impairment.
Impairment testing of significant receivables that are not assessed as impaired individually is
performed by placing them into portfolios of significant receivables with similar risk profiles
and undertaking a collective assessment of impairment. Non-significant receivables are not
individually assessed. Instead, impairment testing is performed by placing non-significant
receivables in portfolios of similar risk profites, based on objective evidence fram historical
experience adjusted for any effects of conditions existing at each balance sheet date.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to scll and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that docs not generate largely
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
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Significant accounting policies cont'd

(i)

Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of a receivable carried at amortised cost is reversed if the
subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed when there is an indication that the
impairment 1oss may no longer exist and there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

(m} Interest-bearing borrowings

{n)
(i)

(i)

Current accounting policy

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost
with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the income
stalement over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Comparative period policy
Bank loans are recognised at their principal amount. Interest expense is accrued at the
contracted rate and included in Trade and Other Payables.

Notes payable are recognised when issued at the net proceeds received. Interest expense is
accrued at the notes issued rate and included in other creditors and accruals.

The quantitative effect of the change in accounting policy is set out in note 33.

Employee benefits

Long-term service benefits

The consolidated entity's net obligation in respect of long-term service benefits is the amount of
future benefit that employees have eamed in return for their service in the current and prior
periods. The obligation is calculated using expected futurc increases in wage and salary rates
including related on-costs and expected settfement dates, and is discounted using the rates
attached to the Commonwealth Government bonds at the balance sheet date which have
maturity dates approximating to the terms of the censolidated entity’s obligations.

Share based payment transactions

(a) A management incentive share plan allows certain consolidated entity employees to acquire
shares of the Company. The fair value of the shares granted is recognised as an employee
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and
spread aver the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the
shares. The fair value of the shares granted is measured using a black scholes pricing modet,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the shares were granted. The amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares that vest except
where forfeiture is only due to sharcs prices not achieving the threshold for vesting. Employees
have been granted a limited recourse 10 year interest free loan in which to acquire the shares.
The loan has not been recognised by the Company as the Company only has recourse to the
value of the shares.
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1 Significant accounting policies cont’d

(b) The share option programme atlows certain consolidated entity employees to acquire
shares of the Company. The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee expense
with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair valuc is measured at grant date and spread
over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options.
The fair value of the options granted is measured using an option-pricing model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest except where
forfeiture is only due to share prices not achieving the threshold for vesting.

(iii) Wages, salaries, annual leave and non-monetary benefits

Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries and annual leave represent present
obligations resulting from employees’ services provided to reporting date, calculated at
undiscounted amounts based on remuneration wage and salary rates that the consolidated entity
expects to pay as at reporting date including related on-costs, such as, workers compensation
insurance and payroll tax.

(iv) Defined contribution plan

(0)

()

(q)

n
(@)

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans arc recognised as an expense in the
income statement as incurred.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the consolidated entity has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. [f the effect is material, provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of month and, when appropriate, the risks specific
to the liability.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost. Trade payables are non interest bearing
and are normally settled on 60 day terms.

Revenue

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognised at fair value of the consideration received net of the amount of goods
and services tax {(GST) to the taxation authority.

Revenue from Sale of Machines and Parts

Revenue from the sale of machines and parts is recognised (net of returns, discounts and
allowances) when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods passcs to the
customer.

Revenue from Rental Income
Revenue from rental services is recognised when invoiced which is based on the number of
machine hours worked in a period.

Expenses

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the inceme stalement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the total lease expense and spread over the lease term.
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1 Significant accounting policies cont’d

(ii) Finance lease payments

Minimum lease payments are apportioncd between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated (o each period during the lease term so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

(iii) Net finance costs

{s)

Net financing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses, and gains and losses an hedging instruments
that are recognised in the income statement (sce accounting policy f). Barrowing costs are
expensed as incurred and included in net financing costs. The interest expense component of
financc lcase payments is recognised in the income statement using the effective interest
method.

Interest income is recognised in the income statement as it accrues, using the effective intercst
method. Dividend income is recognised in the income statement on the datc the entity’s right to
receive payments is established.

Income tax

Income tax on the income statement for the periods presented comprises current and deferred
tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years,

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are
not provided for: goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or tiabilitics that affect neither
accounling nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that they will probably not reverse in the foresceable future. The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset s recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the assct can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same
time as the liability to pay the related dividend.

Tax consolidation

The Company and its wholly-owned Australian resident entities have formed a tax-consolidated
group with effect from 16 December 2004 and are therefore taxed as a single entity from that
date. The head entity within the tax consolidated group is Emeco Holdings Limited.

Current tax expense/incoine, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax asscts arising from
temporary differences of the members of the tax-consolidated group are recognised in the
separale financial statements of the members of the tax-consolidated group using the *separate
taxpayer within group’ approach by reference to the carrying amounts in the scparate financial
statcments of each entity and the tax values applying under tax consolidation.

Any current tax liabilities (or asscts) and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
tax credits of the members of the tax-consolidated group are recognised by the Company (as
head entity in the tax-consolidated group). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
measured by rcference to the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities in the Company’s
balance sheet and their tax values applying under tax consolidation.
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1 Significant accounting policies cont’d

®

(u)

Any current tax liabilities (or assets) and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
assumed by the head entity from the subsidiaries in the tax consolidated group are recognised as
amounts receivable or payable to other entities in the tax consolidated group in conjunction with
any tax funding arvangement amounts (refer below). Any difference between these amounts is
recognised by the Company as an equity contribution to or distribution from the subsidiary.
Distributions firstly reduce the carrying amount of the investment in the subsidiary and are then
recognised as revenue,

The Company recognises deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses of the tax-
consolidated group to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits of the tax-
consolidated group will be available against which the asset can be utilised.

Any subsequent period adjustments to deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
assumed from subsidiaries are recognised by the head entity only.

Nature of tax funding arrangements and tax sharing agrecements

The head entity, in conjunction with other members of the tax-consolidated group, has entered
into a tax funding arrangement which sets out the funding cbligations for members of the tax-
consolidated group in respect of tax amounts. The tax funding arrangements require payments
to/from the head entity equal to the current tax liability (asset) assumed by the head entity and
any tax-loss deferred tax asset assumed by the head entity, resulting in the head entity
recognising an inter-entity receivable (payable) equal in amount to the tax liability (asset)
assumed. The inter-entity receivable (payable) are at call.

Contributions to fund the current tax liabilities are payable as per the tax funding arrangement
and reflect the timing of the head entity’s obligation to make payments for tax liabilities to the
relevant tax authorities.

The head entity in conjunction with other members of the tax-consolidated group, has also
entered into a tax sharing agreement. The tax sharing agreement provides for the determination
of the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on
its tax payment obligations, No amounts have been recogniscd in the financial statements in
respect of this agreement as payment of any amounts under the tax sharing agreement is
considered remote.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the conselidated entity that is engaged either in
providing products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards
that are different from those of other scgments.

Goods and Services Tax

Revenue, expenses and assels are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST),
except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In
these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the balance
sheet.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components
of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or
payable to, the ATO are classified as operating cash flows.
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1 Significant accounting policies cont’d

(v) Equity transaction costs
Transaction costs arising on the issuc of equity instruments are recognised directly in cquity as a
reduction in the proceeds ol the equity instruments to which the costs relate. Transaction costs
are the costs incurred directly in connection with the issue of those equity instruments and
which would not have been incurred had those equily instruments not been issued.

Net investment in foreign operation

Foreign exchange differences relating to foreign currency transactions hedging a net investment
in a self-sustaining foreign operation, together with any related income tax expenses/revenue,
are transferred to the foreign currency translation reserve on consolidation.

Other hedges

All other hedge transactions are initially recorded at the relevant rate at the date of the
transaction. Hedges outstanding at reporting date are valued at the rates ruling on the date and
any gains or fosses are brought to account in the statcment of financial performance.

(w) Accounting estimates and judgements
Management discussed with the Audit Committee the development, selection and disclosure of
the consolidated entity’s critical accounting policies and estimates and the application of these
policies and estimates. The estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed belaw.

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives

The consolidated entity assesses whether goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives
arc impaired at least annually in accordance with the accounting policy in note I(1). These
calculations involve an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are allocated.

Effective use depreciation method
The consolidated entity assesses the assumptions used in determining depreciation under its
effective use method, whereby depreciation is calculated on machine hours worked over the
useful life of the renal equipment.

Management judgement is required to determine the effective useful life of the rental equipment
in hours, and the residual disposal value.

Consolidated The Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
000 $'000 $000 $'000
Other income

Net profit on sale of non current assets
Dividends - joint venture entity
Sundry income

Ineffective portion of cash flow hedges

Emeco Holdings Ltd




Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

3 Profit before Income Tax Expense

Profit from ordinary activitics before income
tax expense has been arrived at after charging/
(crediting) the following items:

Cost of sale of machines and parts
Write-down in value of inventories

Depreciation of:

- buildings

- plant and equipment - owned
- plant and equipment - leased
- furniture fittings and fixtures
- office equipment

- motor vehicles

- leasehold improvements

- sundry plant

Amortisation of:
- contract intangible
- Other intangibles

Total depreciation and amortisation

Financial expenses:

- bank loans and overdrafts

- exchangeable notes

- finance leases

- amortisation of debt establishment costs
- Other facility costs

Financial income:
- intercst revenue
Net bad and doubtful debis expense including

mavements in provision for doubtful debts

Net expense from movements in provision for:
- employee entitlements

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss

Emeco Holdings Ltd

Consolidated The Company
Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
000 $'000 $'000 $'000

133,368 57,800

1,696 1,436
167 50
47,557 13,075
3,807 1,080
104 38
357 209
1,122 350
240 107
651 81

54,005 14,990

10,302 9,300
207 L85

10,509 9,485

04,514 24,475

24 858 11,401
12,603 2,244
1,459 770
3,602 1,414
2,270 1,073

44,792 16,902

(1,184) (407)

43,608 16,495

95 759
805 518
(264) 1,584
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Note

4 Auditor’s Remuneration
Audit services
Auditors of the Company
KPMG Australia:
- audit and review of financial reports
Overseas KPMG Firms:
- audit and review of financial reports
- other assurance services

Other services
Auditors of the Company
KPMG Australia:
- transaction services
- taxation scrvices
Overseas KPMG Firms:
- taxation services

£)]

- transaction services

- accounting assistance

KPMG related practices
- corporate finance

Consolidated The Company
Period Period
14 December 2004 14 December 2004
2006 10 30 June 2005 2006 to 30 June 2005
3 $ $ b
333,000 180,000 333,000 25,000
169,360 59,046 - -
7,560 - - -
509,920 239,046 333,000 25,000
1,055,000 95,910 975,000 -
369,160 207,682 - -
115,862 10,468 - -
62,512 - - -
19,394 - - -
1,621,928 314,060 975,000 -
- 23,182 - 23,182
2,131,848 576,288 1,308,000 48,182

) Included in these amounts are fees for transaction and assurance services for the initial public

offering of the Company totalling $1,037,512.

Emeco Holdings Ltd
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5 Taxation

(a) Recognised in the income statement
Current tax expense:
Current year
Adjustments for prior years

Deferred tax expenscs
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total income tax expense in income statement

(b) Deferred tax recognised directly in equity:
Cashflow hedges

(c) Numercial reconciliation between tax expense
and pre tax net profit
Prima facic income tax expense calculated at 30%
on net profit (loss)

Increase in income tax expense due to:
Thin capitalisation provisions

Effect on tax rate in foreign jurisdictions
Sundry

Decrease in income tax expense due to:

Share of associates' net profit

Franking credit

Under/{over) provided in prior years

Income tax expense (benefit) pre-tax net profit

Emeco Holdings Ltd

Note

Consolidated The Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
7,744 3,057 - 213

101 - - -
7,845 3,057 - 213
3,303 {492) - -

11,148 2,565 - 213

772 - - -
10,145 2,294 (610) (213)

359 - - -

76 - - -

467 400 45 -

- (1 - -
- (128) - -
101 - - -
11,148 2,565 (565) (213)
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6 Current tax assets and liabilitics

The current tax asset for the consolidated entity of $4,018,000 (2005: Nil) represents income taxes
recoverable in respect of prior periods and that arise from payment of taxes in excess of the amount
due to the relevant tax authority. The current tax liability for the consolidated entity of $3,754,000
(2005: $1,060,000) and for the Company of $2,714,000 (2005: $331,000) represent the amount of
income taxes payable in respect of current and prior financial periods. In accordance with the tax
consolidation legislation, the Company as the head entity of the Australia tax-consolidated group has
assurned the current tax liability (asset) initially recognised by the members in the tax-consolidated

group.

7 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Assets Liabilities Net

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Cansolidated $'000 $:000 $'000 $000 3'000 $'000
Property, plant and cquipment (1,250) (1,544) 14,362 3,638 13,112 2,094
Intangible assets - - 830 3,450 830 3,450
Reccivables (873) (438) 927 - 54 (438)
Inventorics - - 4,637 1,676 4,637 1,676
Payables . (532) - - - (532) -
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (497) (319} 474 - 23) (319
Employee benefits (872) (676) - - (872) (676)
Provisions 229) (289) - - (229) (289)
Other items (216) (183) 359 231 143 98
Tax (assets) / liabilities (4,469) (3,449) 21,589 9,045 17,120 5,596
Set off of tax 4,469 2,712 (4,469) (2,712) - -
Net tax (assets) / liabilities - (737) 17,120 6,333 17,120 5,596
The Company
Other - - - - - -

Net tax (assets) / liabilities - - - - - B
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Couatrolled Entitics
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

The Company
2006 2005
£000 $'000

8 Dividends
No dividends were declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Dividend Franking Account
30% franking credits available to sharcholders of the Company

for subsequent financial years 15,873 10,806

The above available amounts are bascd on the balance of the dividend franking account al year-end
adjusted for:

{a) franking credits that will arise from the payment of the amount of the current tax liabilities.
{b) franking credits that the entity may be prevented from distributing in subsequent years,

The ability to utilise the franking credits is dependent upon there being sufficient available profits to
declare dividends.
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9

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the consolidated entity’s business and geographical
segments. The primary format, business segments, is based on the consolidated entity’s
management and internal reporting structure.

Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise interest
carnings assets and revenue, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, and expenscs, and corporate assels
and expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire segment assets that
are expected to be used for more than one year.

Business Segments
The consolidated entity compriscs the following main business segments, based on the consolidated
entity’s management reporting system:

Rental Provides a wide range of earthmoving equipment to customers in
Australia and Asia.

Sales Sells a wide range of earthmoving equipment to customers in the
civil construction and mining industries.

Parts Procuring and supplying global sourced used and reconditioned parts
to external customers and internally to the rental and sales division.

Maintenance Maintenance, repair and refurbishment of customer plant and
equiptmnent.

Geographical segments

In presenting information on the basis of gcographical segments, segment revenue is based on the
geographical location of customers. Segment asscts are based on the geographical location of the
assets.

The consolidated entily’s business segments operate geographically as follows:

Australia Rental, sales, parts and maintenance divisions throughout Australia
Asia Rental division in Indonesia

North America Rental and Sales divisions throughout North America

Europe Sales and procurement division in Nethertands
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 Junc 2006

Consolidated The Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
$000 $'000 $000 £000
10 Cash Assets
Cash at bank 19,240 11,039 - -
11 Trade and other receivables
Current
Trade receivables 72,672 38,725 - -
Less: Provision for doubtful trade debtors {1,134) {1,039 - -
71,538 37,686 - -
Receivables from controlled entities - tax balances - - 23,876 6,178
Tyre prepayments 10,343 - - -
Other trade receivables and prepaymenis 5,130 576 3,363 -
87,011 38,262 27,239 6,178
Non-Current
Other receivables 5,804 1,737 - -
Fair value derivatives 2,575 - - -
Loans to controlled entitics - - 167,796 119,501
8,375 1,737 167,796 119,501

Fair value derivatives

Under previous AGAAP fair value of derivatives were not recorded on balance sheet. In accordance with

AASB [, the Company has elected not to restate comparative information. Refer note 33.

Intcrcompany loans

The Consolidated Entity does not charge interest on loans established within the Austratian group. Interest

is charged on cross boarder [oans at arms length interest rates.

12 Inventories

Equipment and parts - at cost 96,579 73,098 - -
Work in progress - at cost 3,090 551 - -
Consumables, spare parts - at cost 15,769 6,129 - -
115,438 79,778 - -
13 Other Asscts

Dcbt raising costs - 17,541 - -
Less accumulated amortisation - (1,165) - -

- 16,376 - -

Debt raising costs

Under previous AGAAP deferred borrowing costs were classified as other non current assets. Under
AASBE 139 these are classified as an offset to interest bearing liabilitics effective 1 July 2005. Refer note

(1m).

Emeco Holdings Ltd
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Consolidated The Company
Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $'000 000
14 Intangible assets
Goodwill
Carrying amount at the beginning of the ycar 200,188 - -
Acquisition through business combination 10,443 199,782 -
Eifects of movement in forcign exchange 1,221 406 -
2i1,852 200,188 -
Contract intangibles - at cost 2L 20,800 -
Less accumulated amortisation {18,345) (9,300) -
2,766 11,500 -
Other intangibles - at cost 654 321 -
Less: Accumulated depreciation {327) (185) -
327 136 -
Total intangible ussels 214,945 211,824 .
Movement in contract intangibles
Carrying amount at the beginning of the ycar 11,500 - -
Acquisition through business combination 1,568 20,800 -
Less : Accumulated amortisation (10,302) (9,300) -
2,766 11,500
Amortisation and impairment charge
The amortisation and impairment charge is
recognised in the following line items in the
incotne statement:
Amortisation expense 10,509 9,485 -
Impairments - - -
10,509 9,485 -
Impairment tests for cash generating units
contained goodwill
‘The following units have significant carrying
amount of goodwill:
Ausiralian rental 161,844 157,993 -
North American rental 7,376 - -
Asian rental 22,527 22.090 -
191,747 180,083 -
Ausiralian sales 16,376 16,376 -
Australian parts 3,726 3,729 -
211,852 200,188 -

The recoverable amount of the cash generating units is based on value in use calculations, The
calculations arc based on the cashflow projections for five years. After this period, perpetual cashflows
assuiming no growth are used. A pre-tax discount rate of 8.5% has been used to discount the cashllows.
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

15

16

[nvestments accounted for using the equity
method for joint venture entities

Property, Plant and Equipment

Frechold Land and Buildings - at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Leasehold Improventents al cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Plant and Equipment - at cost
Less : Accumulated depreciation

l.eased Plant and Equipment - at capitalised cost
Less : Accumulated depreciation

Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings - at cost
Less : Accumulated depreciation

Office Equipment - at cost
I.cs5 1 Accumulated depreciation

Motor Vehicles - at cost
Less : Accumulnted depreciation

Sundry Plant - at cost
Less : Accumulated depreciation

Total Property, Plant and Equipment - at net book
value

Emeco Holdings Ltd

Consolidated

The Company

Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $000 $000

29 58 58 -

8,786 6,730

{217) (50) -

8,569 6,680 -

2,498 2,190 ]

347) (107) -

2,151 2,083 ;

463,565 191,607 -

(60,632) {13,075) -

402,933 178,532 ]

24,094 15,454 ]

(3,640) (1,080) -

20,454 14,374 5

873 514 ]
(142) (38) -

731 476 -
1,277 970 -
(566) (209) -

711 761 :
5,665 2,976 .

(1,472) (350) -
4,193 2,626 -
4,128 2,229 -

(917) 1) -

3,211 2,148 .

442,953 207,680 -
62




Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ecnded 30 June 2006

16 Property, Plant and Equipment cont'd

Reconciliations

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each
class of property, plant and equipment are set out

below:

Freehold Land and Buildings
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year

Additions

Acquisition through entity acquired

Depreciation

Effects of movements in foreign exchange
Carrying amount at the end of the year

Leasehold Improvements
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year

Additions

Acquisition through entity acquired

Disposals
Depreciation

Carrying amount at the end of the year

Plant and Equipment
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year

Additions

Acquisition through entity acquired

Disposals
Depreciation

Effects of movements in foreign exchange
Carrying amount at the end of the year

Furniture, Fixturcs and Fittings
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year

Additions

Acquisition through entity acquired

Depreciation

Effects of movement in foreign exchange
Carrying amount at the end of the year

Office Equipment

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year

Additions

Acquisition through entity acquired

Disposals
Depreciation

Effects of movement in foreign exchange
Carrying amount at the end of the year

Emece Holdings Ltd

Consolidated The Company

Note 2006 2005 2006 2005

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
6,680 - - -
2,028 26 - -
- 6,704 - -
(167) (50) - ;
28 - - -
8,569 6,080 - -
2,083 - - -
308 172 - -
- 2,023 - -
- (5) - B,
(240) (07 - -
2,151 2,083 - -
178,532 - - -
212,747 42,834 - -
63,866 149,150 - -
(7,387)  (1,031) - -
47,557y  (13,075) - -
2,732 654 - -
402,933 178,532 - -
476 - - -
343 73 - -
- 441 - -
(104) (38) - -
16 - - -
731 476 - -
761 - - -
231 255 ; -
73 718 . -
(1} 3) - -
(357 (209) - -
4 - - -
711 761 - -
63




Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

6

17

Property, Plant and Equipment cont'd
Reconciliations cont'd

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each
class of property, plant and equipment are set out

below:

Motor Vehicles

Cartying amount at the beginning of the year
Additions

Acquisition through entity acquired
Disposals

Depreciation

Effects of movement in foreign exchange
Carrying amount at the end of the year

Sundry Plant

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Additions

Acquisition through entity acquired
Disposals

Depreciation

Effects of movement in foreign exchange
Carrying amount at the end of the year

Leased Plant and Equipment

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Additions

Acquisition through entity acquired

Transfer to owned plant and equipment
Amortisation

Effects of movements in foreign exchange
Carrying amount at the end of the year

Trade and Other Payables

Trade creditors

Other creditors and accruals

Payable to controlled entities - tax balances

Emece Holdings Ltd

Consolidated The Company

Note 2006 2005 2006 2005

$000 $'000 $000 $'000
2,626 - - -
2,149 546 - -
682 2,442 - -
(164) (12) - -
(1,122) {350) - -
22 - - -
4,193 2,626 - -
2,148 - - -
1,314 407 - -
289 1,823 - -
(3i) ) - -
(651) (81) - -
142 - - -
3,211 2,148 - -
14,374 - - -
18,373 9,214 - -
- 6,080 - -
(9,238) - - -
(3,807) (1,080) - -
752 160 - -
20,454 14,374 - -
12,869 8,331 - -
29,758 14,509 4,700 1,377
- - 15,508 4,909
42,627 22,840 20,208 6,286
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

18

19

Consolidated The Company
Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Interest Bearing Liabilities
Current
Overdraft 6,000 - - -
Lease liabilities - sccured 6,465 4,514 - -

12,465 4,514 - -

Non-Current

Bank loans - secured 459,836 240,689 - -
Exchangeable notes - secured 125,000 125,000 - -
l.ease liabilities - secured 9,241 8,632 - -
Debt raising costs {17,384) - -

576,693 374,321 - -

Bank loans

The bank loan is provided by a syndicate of banks ("syndicated facility") who hold a fixed and floating
charge over the assets and undertakings of the Consolidated entity. The facility has an expiration date of
18 January 2010. Each entity of the consolidated group is a guarantor. The syndicated facility allows
for funds to be drawn in Australian, United States, Canadian and Euro dollars. At year end the
consolidated entity had drawn A$311,000,000, US$46,848,800 (A$63,393,000), C$68,700,000
{A$83,729,000) and €31,000,000 (A$1,714,000), ((2005: A$213,000,000 and US$21,140,800
{A$27,689,000)).

Overdraft

The overdraft facility is supported by the financiers of the syndicated facility mentioned above by a
standby lctter of credit facility for the same amount. The expiration date of the overdraft facility is 9
June 2007.

Exchangeable Notes

On 27 April 2005, the Consolidated entity issued 1,250,000 of Exchangeable Nates at $100 each totalling
$125,000,000. The notes have an expiration date of 27 Octaber 2010 and pay a fixed interest of
10.0825% bi annually over the duration of the term. The Notes have a second ranking claim over the
assets of the Consolidated entity. As a result of the Company’s initial public offering (refer note 34),
note holders were entitled to redeem their notes at 106% of the principal amount outstanding or exchange
their Notes into listed securities at a 2.5% discount to the issue price paid by retail investors. The
settlement and loan redemption occurred on 4 August 2006.

Leasc Liabilitics

The Controlled entity has been granted a US$15,000,000 finance facility with PT Caterpillar Finance
Indonesia. The Consolidated entity has provided a Letter of Comfort to guarantce the terms and
conditions of the finance facility. Assets leased under the facility are secured by the facility.

Debt raising costs
Under previous GAAP defcrred borrowing costs were classified as other non current assets. Under
AASB 139 these are classified as an offset to interest bearing liabilities effective | July 2005. Refer note

{1m).

Non Current Payables
Loan from Controlled entity - - - 58
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 Junc 2006

Consolidated The Company
Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'o00 $'000 $'000
20 Financing Arrangements
The consolidated entity has access to the
following lines of credit:
Total facilities available:
Bank loans 490,000 315,000 -
Exchangable notes 125,000 125,000 -
Finance leases 20,300 19,646 -
Overdraft 25,000 25,000 -

660,300 484,646 -

Facilities utilised at reporting date:

Bank loans 459,836 240,689 -
Exchangable notes 125,000 125,000 -
Finance leases 15,706 13,146 -
Qverdraft 6,000 -

606,542 378,835 -

Facilities not utilised at reporting date:

Bank loans 30,164 74,311 -
Exchangable notes - - -
Finance leases 4,594 6,500 -
Overdraft 19,000 25,000 -

53,758 105,811 -

21 Provisions

Current

Employee benefits:

- annual leave 2,278 1,624 -

- long service leave 316 202 -
2,594 1,826 - -

There were 398 (2005: 266} employees

at period end

Non-Current

Employee benefits - long service lcave 520 483 -

Defined contribution superannuation funds
The consolidated entity makes contributions to defined contribution superannuation funds.
The amount recognised as expense was $2,039,000 (2005: $752,000).

Emeco Holdings Lid
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Consolidated The Company
Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $000 $'000 o000

22 Issued Capital

38,705,002 (2005 37,500,002) ordinary shares, fully paid 42,744 37,500 42,744 37,500

113,251,248 (2005 82,001,248) preferred ordinary shares,

fully paid 131,334 £2,001 131,334 82,001

7,500,000 (2005: 7,500,000) A class management performance

shares, fully paid - - - -

10,500,000 (2005: 10,500,000} B class management performance

shares, unpaid - - - -

174,078 119,501 174,078 119,501

(a2} Ordinary shares

Movements during the period

Balance at beginning of the financial period 37,500 - 37,500 -

Shargs issued

37,500,002 for cash pursuant to a subscription agreement - 37,500 - 37,500

2,000,000 pursuant to business combination consideration 4,000 - 4,000 -

608,225 for cash pursuant to a subscription agreement 1,094 - 1,094 -

Share based payments In(ii) 150 - 150 -

Balance at end of the financial period 42,744 37,500 42,744 37,500
(b) Preferred ordinary prefercnce shares

Movement during the period

Balance at beginning of the financial period 32,001 - 82,001 -

Shares issued

82,001,248 for cash pursuant to a subscription agreement - 82,001 - 82,001

31,250,000 for cash pursuant to a subscription agreement 50,000 - 50,000 -

Transaction costs arising from issue for cash (667) - (667) -

Balance at end of the financial period 131,334 82,001 131,334 82,001
(c) A class management performance shares

Movement during the period

Batance at beginning of the financial period - - - -

Balance at end of the financial period - - - -
(d) B class management performance shares

Movement during the period

Balance at beginning of the financial period - - - -

Balance at end of the financial period - - - -
Emeco Holdings Ltd 67




Fmeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

22 Contributed Equity cont'd

Terms and conditions

{a)

Ordinary shares
Holders of ordinary shares arc entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at shareholders' meetings.

In the event of winding up of the Company, the ordinary sharcholder ranks after all other creditors are
fully entitled to any proceeds of liquidation.

(b) Preferred ordinary shares

©

(d)

{e)

Holders of preferred ordinary shares are entitled to the same terms and conditions as ordinary
shareholders, with the addition of weighted voting rights. The weighted voting right reflects the voting
right that would have been achieved had all investors, invested equally across the parallel structure of
Emeco Holdings Limited and Emeco (UK) Limited.

'A' class management performance siiares

Holders of A Class Performance shares will be entitled to convert their shares to Ordinary Shares upan
a Conversion Event (note (i)) subject to the Investors (note (i)} obtaining an Intcrnal Rate of Return
(IRR) of 25% on their investment and where the Investor cash flows are 2 times the aggregate of the
negative cash flows paid by the Investors, Conversion into Ordinary Shares will be directly
proportional to the IRR achieved up to a maximum IRR of 35% (i.e. 26% IRR = 10% conversion
entitlement, 27% = 20% conversion entitlement, 35% IRR (maximum) = 100% conversion
entitlement).

Mote (i): Conversion Event means Initial Public Offering, Share Sale or Post Business Salcs Return
of Capital.

Note (ii): Investors means the private equity funds controlled by Archer Capital Pty Ld and Pacific
Equity Partners which holds Ordinary Shares.

'B' class management performance shares

Holders of B Class Performance Shares will be entitled to convert their shares to Ordinary Shares upoen
a Conversion Event on a one for one basis, subject to the Holder paying the unpaid portion of the 5l
isswe price in addition to the following requirements:

(1} If the Investors obtain an IRR of greater than 25%, but where Investor Cash flows are less than 2
times the aggregate of the negative cash flow paid by the Tnvestors, the Holders are entitled to
convert 20% of their B Class Shares to Ordinary Shares for each year of ownership of the B Class
Performance Shares.

(2) If the Investors obtain an IRR of greater than 25% and [nvestor Cash flows are greater than 2
times the aggregate of the negative cash flows paid by the Investors the Holders are entitled to
convert 100% of their shares B Class Management Performance Shares to Ordinary Shares on a
one-for-one basis.

On 4 August 2006 all A and B Class management performance shares were converted to ordinary
shares as a result of the Company’s initial public offering.

Deferred subscriptions

On 2 November 2005, the management shareholder group entered into a subscription agreement with
the Company (“Agreement”) pursuant to which they collectively agreed to subscribe for a total of
10,416,667 ordinary shares by 30 September 2010. The specific number of shares for which each
management shareholder agreed to subscribe was set out in the Agreement. The subscription price for
the shares as at the date of the Agreement was $1.60. The Agreement provided that the subscription
price would increase by 13% per annum on a compound basis if the managers deferred their
subscription. At year end, none of the managers had subscribed for the sharcs. Subsequent to 30 June
2006, and as part of the process of preparing the Company for the IPO, all of the managers subscribed
for the sharcs and paid the required subscription amounts to the Company. (Refer note 34).
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

23  Reconciliation of movement in capital and
reserves attributable to equity holders
of the parent

2006
Consolidated Issued Hedging  Retained Minority Total
3000°s capital reserve earnings Total interest equity
Balance at 1 July 2005 119,501 - 5,566 125,067 31,047 156,114
Totat recognised income and expense - 1,195 15,166 16,361 9217 M 25578
Shares issucd (net of costs) 54,577 - - 54,577 - 54,577
Ralance at 30 June 2006 174,078 1,195 20,732 196,005 40,264 236,269
™ Included in the total recognised income and expense of the minoerity interest rate exchange difference
on transation of foreign operations of $1,713,000.
2005
Issued Hedging  Retained Minority Total
capital reserve earnings Total interest equily
Balance at 1 July 2004 - - - - - -
Total recogniscd income and expense - - 5,566 5,566 s48 @ 6,114
Shares issued (net of costs) 119,501 - - 119,5G1 30,499 150,000
Balance at 30 Junc 2005 119,501 - 5,566 125,067 31,047 136,114

) Tncluded in the total recognised income and expense of the minority interest rate exchange difference
on transation of forcign operations of $1,031,000.

2006

Company Issued  Retained Total

$000°s capital  carnings equity
Ralance at | July 2005 119,501 497) 119,004

Total recognised income and expense - (1,468) (1,468)
Shares issued (net of costs) 54,577 - 54,577
Balance at 30 June 2006 174,078 (1,965) 172,113

2005

Issued  Retained Total

capital earnings equity
Balance at 1 July 2004 - - -

Total recognised income and expense - (497) (497)
Shares issued (net of costs) 119,501 - 119,501
Balance at 30 June 2005 119,501 {497y 119,004

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in fair value of cash
flow hedging instruments retated to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

24 Commitments

(a) Operating Lease Commitments
Future non-cancellable operating lease rentals of
premises not provided for in the financial statements
and payable:
Within one year
One year or later but not later than five years
Later than five years

The consolidated entity leases the majority of their
operating premises. The terms of the tenure are
negotiated in conjunction with the consolidated entity’s
in-house and external advisors and is dependent upen
market forces.

Also included in operating leases are three rental
. machines with varying lease expiries out to Junc 2008.

During the financial year the consolidated entity
recognised an expense in the income statement in respect
to operating leases of $1,459,000 (2005: $770,000).

(b) Finance Lease Payment Commitments
Finance lease commitments are payable:
Within one year
One year or later but not later than five years

Less: Future lease finance charges

Lease liabilities provided for in the financial
statements:

Current

Non-current

Total lcase liability

The consolidated entity leases plant and equipment
under finance leases., The consolidated entity's lease
liabilities are secured by the leascd assets of $§20,454,000
(2005: $14,374,000). In the event of default, the leased
assets revert to the lessor.

(c}  Capital Commitments
The consolidated entity has entered into commitments
with certain suppliers for purchases of fixed assets,
primarily rental fleet assets, in the amount of $43,904,000
(2005: $75,843,000) payable within one year.

Emeco Holdings Ltd

Consolidated The Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 £o00 $'000

6,513 4,499

7.811 5,307

2,087 2,404

16,411 12,210

7,583 5,294 -

9,658 9,086 -
17,241 14,380 -
(1,535) (1,234) -
15,706 13,146 -

6,465 4,514 -

9,241 8,632 -
15,706 13,146 -

70




Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

25 Financial instruments

(a) Effective interest rates

In respect of income earning financial assets and intercst bearing financial liabilities, the following table
indicates their effective interest rates at balance sheet date and the periods in which they were repriced.

30 June 2006 Effective
Interest | year 1to More than
Rate Total or less 5 years 5 years
2006 2006 2006 2006 2006
% $000's $000°s $000°s $000’s
Financial Assets
Cash assets
AUD 4.6 6,780 6,780 - -
UusD 31 6,736 6,736 - -
CAD 1.7 5,613 5,613 - -
EURQ 0.0 111 111 - -
- 19,240 19,240 - -
Financial Liabilitics
Bank loans
AUD floating rate loan 7.6 311,000 311,000 - -
Effects of interest rate swaps (i} .1 - 175,000  (175,000) -
USD floating rate loan 6.3 63,393 63,393 - -
CAD floating rate loan 52 83,729 83,729 - -
Effccts of interest rate swaps (i) 0.2 - 49,000 (49,000} -
EURO floating rate loan 4.5 1,714 1,714 - -
Exchangeable notes (ii) 10.1 125,000 - 125,000 -
USD finance lease liahility 9.8 15,706 6,465 9,241 -
Overdraft 6.2 6,000 6,000 - -
- 606,542 696,301 (89,759) -
30 June 2005 Effective
Interest | year 1to More than
Rate Total or less 5 years 5 years
2005 2005 2005 2005 2005
% $000’s $000's £000°s $000's
Financial Assets
Cash assets
AUD 4.3 11,039 11,039 - -
- 11,039 11,039 - -
Financial Liabilities
Bank loans
AUD floating rate loan 7.6 213,000 213,000 - -
Effects of interest rate swaps (i) 0.2 - 200,000  (200,000) -
USD floating rate loan 4.9 27,689 27,689 - -
Exchangeable notes (ii) 101 125,000 - - 125,000
USD finance lease liability 6.9 13,146 4,514 8,612 -
- 378,835 445,203 (191,368) 125,000
(i) Interest rate risk emanates from the changes in market interest rates impacting on the consolidated
entity’s short and long term debt.
(i) These liabilities bear interest at a fixed rate.
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25 Financial instruments cont’d

(i) Interest rate swaps

(b)

Emeco Heldings Ltd

The consolidated entity adopts a policy of ensuring that at least 50 per cent of its cxposure to changes
in interest rate borrowings is on a fixed basis.

The consolidated cntity manages its interest ratc exposure by entering into interest ratc swap contracts.
Interest rate swaps are used to convert a portion of the consolidated entity's floating interest rate
exposures o fixed interest rate exposures, thereby reducing the volatifity of interest rate costs between
financial reporting years,

The fair value of interest rate swap contracts as at 30 June 2006 is a profit of $2,576,000 (2005:
($1,755,0007).

At 30 June 2006, the notional principal amounts of the interest ratc swap contracts held by the
consolidated entity were as follows:

2006 2005

$000°s $000's

Australian dollars 175,000 200,000
Canadian dollars (C$40,000,000) 49,000 -

These interest rate swaps principle amount expiring over the next 5 years are:

2006 2005

$000°s 3000’s

Not later than one year 25,000 25,000
Later than one year but not later than two 25,000 25,000
Later than two years but not later than three 25,000 25,000
Later than three years but not later than four 149,000 25,000
Later than four years but not later than five - 100,000

Foreign currency risk

The consolidated entity is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that
are denominated in a currency other than the AUD. The currencics giving rise to this risk are
primarily U.S. Dollars, Japanese Yen and Euro.

The consolidated entity hedges all trade receivables and trade payables which are denominated in a
foreign currency and greater than $50,000. The consolidated cntity uses forward exchange contracts
to hedge its foreign currency risk. Most of the forward exchange contracts have maturities of less
than onc year.

In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities held in currencics other than the AUD, the
consolidated entity ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by matching foreign
denominated financial assets with matching financial liabilities and visa versa,




Emecco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
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25 Financial instruments cont'd
The following table set out the gross value to be rcceived under forward foreign currency contracts, the

weighted average contracted exchange rates and the settlement years of outstanding contracts for the
consolidated entity.

Consolidated Consolidated
2006 2005
Weighted $000’s  $000°s Weighted $000's  3000°s
average gains/  average gains/
rate (losses) rate (losses)
Not later than one year
Sell US dollars/Buy Australian
dollars 0.74 1,571 {6) 0.77 2,760 -
Sell Canadian dollars/Buy
Australian dollars - - - 0.94 3t -
Sell Euro doliars/Buy Australian
dollars 0.61 741 (30) - - -
Sell Australian dollars/Buy US
Doltars 0.76 12,270 439 - - -
Sell Australian doliars/Buy New
Zealand dollars 1.19 295 {8) - - -
Sell Australian dollars/Buy
Japanese Yen 84.47 775 6) - - -

(c) Net fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Valuation approach
Net fair values of financial asscts and liabilities are determined by the consolidated entity on the
following basis:

Recognised financial instruments

Monetary financial assets and liabilities not readily traded in an organised financial market are
determined by valuing them at the present value of contractual future cash flows on amounts due from
customers (reduced for expected credit losses) or due to suppliers. The carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities, except the exchangeable notes, approximate net fair value.

The carrying amount and net fair value as at reporting date of the exchangcable notes is $125,000,000
(2005: $125,000,000) and $137,500,000 (2005: $129,000,000) respectively.
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25 Financial instruments cont’d
(d) Credit risk exposures

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties failed to perform as
contracted.

Recognised financial instruments
The credit risk of financial assets, excluding investments, of the consolidated entity, which have been
recognised on balance sheet, is the carrying amount net of any provision for doubtful debts.

Interest rate swaps are subject to credit in relating to relevant counterparties, which are principally
large global banks. The credit risk on swap contracts is limited to the net amount to be received from
counterparties on contract that are favourable to the consolidated entity. At year end the swap
positiens were in a favourable position of $2,576,000 (2005: (§1,755,000)).

As all forward exchange contracts are transacted with counterparties, which are principally large
global banks, and the position disclosed above are not consider significant, the credit risk associated
with these contracts is considered minimal.

Concentration of credit risk on trade and term debtors exists in respect to the mining industry.
However this risk is mitigated through a debtors insurance policy held over a significant portion of
these debtors.

Other than the concentration of credit risk described above, the consolidated entity is not materially
exposed to any individual country.

26 Contingent Liabilities
Details of contingent liabilities where the probability of future payments/receipts is not considered remote
as set out below, as well as details of contingent liabilities, which although considered remote, the
directors consider should be disclosed.

Guarantees

The consolidated entity has guarantecd the repayments of $1,036,000 with varying expiry dates out to 30
June 2009,
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27 Notes to the Statements of Cash Flows

(i) Reconciliation of Cash
For the purposes of the statements of cash flow, cash inciudes cash on hand and at bank and short term
deposits at call, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash as at the end of the financial year as shown in
the statements of cash flows is reconciled to the related items in the statements of financial position as

follows:-
Consolidated The Company
Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
Fooo $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash assets i) 19,240 11,039 - -
(i) Reconciliation of net profit/(loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities
Net profit/(loss) 22,670 5,083 {1,468) (497)
Add/(less) items classified as investing/financing
activitics:
Net Profit on sale of non-current assets (552) (391) - -
Add/(less) non-cash items:
Amortisation 10,509 9,485 - -
Depreciation 54,005 14,990 - -
Amortisation of borrowing costs 3,602 1,165 - -
Unrealised forcign exchange (gain)/loss 215 1,365 - -
Stock write downs 1,696 1,436 - -
Share of joint venture entities net (profit)/loss
adjusted for dividends received and share of
profits owing to previous owners - 4 - -
Equity settled share bascd payments 150 - 150 -
(Decrease)/Increase in income taxes payable 2,693 (27 3,389 33t
(Decrcase)/Increase in deferred taxes 7,506 (493) - -
Net cash provided by operating activities betore change in
assets liabilities adjusted for assets and liabilities acquired 102,494 31917 2,071 (166)
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (55,755) 2,000 (18,025)  (6,178)
{Increase)/decrease in inventories (37,356} (356) - -
{Increase)/decrease in other assets - 640 (3,315) -
Increase/(decrease) in payables 28,393 5316 13,138 6,286
Increase/{decrease) in provisions §05 340 C- -
Net cash provided by operating activities 38,581 39,857 (6,131) (58)

(iii} During the year the company acquired contro! over Andy’s Earthmovers Hire and Sale (“Andy’s™). Part of
the consideration paid was $4,000,000 of the Company’s shares which is not reflected in the statement of
cash flow.

(iv) During the year the consclidated entity acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate fair value

of $18,373.,000 (2005: $9,214,000) by means of finance leases. ‘These acquisitions are not reflected in the
statements of cash flow.
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28 Controlled Entities

(a) Particulars in Relation to Controlled Entities 2006 2005

Note % %

Parent entity

Emeco Holdings Limited

Controlled entities
Emeco Limited 100 100
Emeco Intemational Pty Limited 100 100
Emeco Sales Pty Ltd 100 100
Emeco Parts Pty Ltd 100 100
Emeco (UK) Limited (i} 0 0
Emeco Equipment (USA) LLC (i) 0 0
Emeco International Mauritius (iii) 0 0
Emeco Global (iii} 0 0
PT Prima Traktor IndoNusa (PTE) (iv) 0 0
Emeco International Europe BY ) 0 0
Emeco Europe BV (v) 0 0
Emeco Canada Ltd (vi) 0 0
Notes
(i) Emeco (UK) Limited was incorporated in and carries on business in the United Kingdom.
Emeco (UK) Limited is the parent entity of Emeco Equipment (USA) LLC, Emeco
International Mauritius, Emeco Global, Emeco International Europe BV and Emeco Europe
BV. The Company has no economic interest in Emeco (UK) Limited and its controlled entities.
However, Emeco (UK) Limited has been identified as a special purpose entity, set up for the
specific purposes of an cqualisation deed between the shareholders of Emeco (UK) Limited and
Emeco Holdings Limited, forming a relationship of control. The interest in Emeco (UK}
Limited and its controlled entities is reflected through minority interests (refer Note 23).
Subscquent to year end the Company acquired all the shares in Emeco (UK) Limited effective 4
August 2006.
(i) Emeco Equipment (USA) LLC was incorporated in and carries on business in the United States.
(iii) Emeco International Mauritius and Emeco Global were incorporated in and carry on business in
the United Kingdom. Each Company owns 50% in PT Prima Traktor IndoNusa.
(iv} PT Prima Traktor IndoNusa was incorporated in and carries on business in Indonesia.
) Emeco Intemational Europe BV and Emeco Europe BV were incorporated in and carries on
business in the Netherlands. Emeco International Europe BV is the parent entity of Emeco
Europe BV.
(vi) Emeco Canada Ltd was incorporated and carries on business in Canada. On August 2 2005

Emeco Canada Ltd acquired River Valley Equipment Company Ltd.
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28 Controlled Entities cont’d
{b) Acquisition of entities

On 2 August 2005, the consolidated entity acquired all the shares in River Valley Equipment Company
Limited (“River Valley") for $18,472,000 in cash. This company is a Canadian based heavy
equipment rental and sales company, located in Edmonton, Alberta. In the cleven months to 30 June
2006 the subsidiary contributed net profit of $2,536,000 to the consolidated net profit for the year.

Effect of acquisitions
The acquisition had the following cffect on the consolidated entity’s assets and liabilitics.

Acquiree’s net asscts at the acquisition date

$000’s Recognised  Fair Value  Carrying ‘
value  adjustment amounts J‘

Cash and cash equivalents 2,546 - 2,546

Property, plant and equipment 33,864 8,552 25,312

[nventories 204 - 204

Trade and other receivables 6,295 - 6,295

Contract intangibles 1,257 1,257 -

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (16,325) - (16,325)

Trade and other payables (8,605) - (8,605)

Deferred tax liability (7,356) (3,298) (4,058)

Net identifiable assets and liabilities 11,880 6,511 5,369

Goodwill on acquisition 6,592

Consideration paid, satisfied in cash 18,472

Cash (acquired) (2,546)

Net cash outflow 15,926

Contract intangibles were recognised in the business combination at the date of acquisition.
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28 Controlled Entitics cont’d

{(c) On | January 2006, the consolidated entity acquired the Andy’s business for a consideration of
$35,803,000. Andy’s is an Austratian bascd heavy equipment rental and sales company located in
Bendigo, Victoria. In the six months to 30 June 2006 the subsidiary contributed net profit of
$1,248,000 to the consolidated net profit for the year.

Acquiree’s net assets at the acquisition date

$000°s Recognised Fair Value  Carrying
value  adjustment amounts
Property, plant and equipment 31,045 - 31,045
Inventories 706 - 706
Contract intangibles 314 311 -
Provisions (17 - (an
Deferred tax liability (93) {93) -
Net identifiable assets and liabilitics 31,952 218 31,734
Goodwill on acquisition 3,851
35,803
Consideration paid:
Satisfied in cash 31,303
Satisfied in equity 4,000
15,803

Contract intangibles were recognised in the business combination at the date of acquisition.

If the River Valley and Andy’s acquisitions had occurred on 1 July 2005, the estimated consolidated
entity revenue would have been $401,786,000 and profit of $24,083,000 for the year ended 30 June
2006.
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28 Controlled Entities cont’d

(d) The following controlled entities were acquired during the prior financiat year:

On 16 December 2004 and 1 January 2005 the consolidated entity obtained control of Emeco Limited
and Emeco International Pty Limited and its wholly owned subsidiaries respectively. Details of the

acquisitions are as follows:

Recognised Fair Value Carrying
Fair value of net assets of entity acquired: Value Adjustment Amount
Property, plant and equipment 169,682 - 169,682
Deferred tax assct 3,539 - 3,539
Cash assets 6,207 - 6,207
Inventories 70,015 - 70,015
Receivables 37,323 - 37,323
Intangibles 20,800 20,800 -
Prepayments 990 - 990
Other 1,038 - 1,038
Bank loans and finance leases (106,623} - (106,623)
Payables (17,296) - (17,296)
Current tax fiability (1,722) - (1,722)
Provisions (1,935) - (1,935}
Deferred tax liabilitics (9,627) (6,240} (3,387)
172,391 14,560 157,831
Goodwill on acquisition 199,782
Consideration paid satisfied in cash 372,173

On 30™ June 2005 the Consolidated Entity was restructured. Emeco International Pty 1td disposed of
its interest in Emeco International Mauritius, Emeco Global, PT Prima Tractor IndoNusa and Emeco
International Europe BV and Emeco Europe BV. The disposed companies were acquired by another
controlled entity, Emeco (UK) Limited. There was na gain or loss to the Group resulting from this

transaction.

Acquisition of assets

During the prior year a controiled entity acquired the assets and liabilities of Emeco USA General
Partnership for $154,000, including a net debt of $10,258,000 which was subsequently repaid.
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29 Investments accounted for using the equity method

a) Details of investments in joint venture entitics are as follows:

Ownership Investment carrying amount
Interest
Consolidated Consolidated The Company
& The 2006 2005 2006 2005
Company $7000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Industrial Asset Management 50% 58 58 - -

Pty Ltd (*IAM")

The principal activity of IAM is to enter into forward commitments for the purchase of, primarily,
heavy earthmoving and construction equipment for profitable resale. No new forward commitments
were entered during the year. The joint venture is in the process of being wound up.

Dividends received from associates for the year ended 30 June 2006 to the Company amounted to SNil
{2005: $425,000).

Consolidated

2006 2005
$°000 $°000
Summary of performance and financial position
of joint venture cntities
The consolidated entity’s share of aggregate assets,
liabilities and profits of joint venture entities is as
follows:-
Net loss . - )
Total assets 58 58

Total liabilities - -
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29

30

Investments accounted for using the equity method cont’d

Results of Joint Venture Entities
Share of joint venture entities revenue
$hare of joint venture entities expenses

Share of joint venture entities income tax revenue
Share of joint venture entities net profit included in the
consolidated loss from ordinary activities

after related income tax expense.

Share of post-acquisition retained profits and reserves
attributable to joint venture entities

Share of net loss of joint venture entitics

Dividends from joint venture entitics

Share of joint venture entities accumulated losses at the end
of the financial period

Movements in carrying amount of investments

Carrying amount of investment in joint venture entities at
the beginning of the financial period through entity acquired
Share of joint venture entities net profit

Dividends received from joint venture entities

Carrying amount of investment in joint venture entitics at
the end of the financial period

Key management personnel disclosure

Consolidated

2006
$o00

2005
$'000

141
(157)

The Company

2006
$000

2005
$'000

(16)

12

4

)
(425)

(429)

58

487

4
(425)

58

58

The following were key management personnel of the consolidated entity at any time during the reporting

period and unless otherwise indicated were key management personnel for the entire period.

Non-executive directors Executives

G ] Minton (Chairperson) M A Turner (General Manager Emeco Parts, Maintenance &
P J McCullagh Plant)

1 D Carnegie (resigned 18 June 2006) W E Malvern (General Manager Global Procurement)

R 1 Koczkar (resigned 18 June 2006)

R Parish (General Manager Indonesia)

A N Brennan (appointed 16 August 2005) T T Sauvarin (General Manager Emeco Sales)
J 8 H Fitton {(appointed 5 April 2006) D O Tilbrook (General Manager Emeco Rental Western Region;

Executives directors
L C Freedman (Managing Director)

from January 2006 became General Manager Rental Australia)
D A Jeffery (General Manager, Emeco Rental Eastern Region;

R L C Adair (Chief Financial Officer) from January 2006 became President Emeco North America)

Subsequent to year end, Tony Carr became General Manager Emeco Parts, Maintenance & Plant, Michac!
Turner became Gencra) Manager Global Procurement and Wayne Malvern became Genceral Manager
Business Development on the 1 July 2006. Peter Johnston became a non-cxecutive director on the 1%

September 2006.
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30 Key management personnel disclosure cont’d

Key management personnel compensation
The key management personnel compensation is as follows:

Consolidated The Company
Period Period
14 December 04 14 December 04
2006 to 30 June 2005 2006 to 30 June 2005
Short-term employee benefits 2,956,814 1,187,938 - -
Other long term benefits - - - -
Post-employment benefits 220,223 81,223 - -
Termination benefits - - - -
Equity compensation benefits 55,184 - - -
3,232,221 1,269,161 - -

Remuncration of key management personnel by the consolidated entity
Disclosure of remuneration policics, service contracts and details of key management personnel
remunerations are included in the Remuneration report on pages 19 to 32,

Equity Instruments

Shares and rights over equity instruments granted as compensation under management incentive
share plan

During the year the Company implemented a management incentive share plan in which shares were
granted to certain directors and employees of the Company. The shares vest over a five year period and
are accounted for as an option in accordance with AASB 2 Share Based Payments. The Company has
provided a ten year interest free loan to facilitate the purchase of the Sharcs under the management

incentive share plan.
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30 Kecy management personnel disclosure cont’d
The movement during the reporting period in the number of shares issued under the management incentive

share plan in Emeco Holdings Limited held, directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management
person, including their related parties, is as follows:

Vested and
Held at Vested exercisable
Held at Granted as 30 June during  at 30 June
1 July 2005  compensation Excrcised 2006  the year 2006
Dircctors
Alec Brennan - 250,000 - 250,000 - -
Rodney Parish - 300,000 - 300,000 - -

No shares held by key management personnel have vested under the management incentive share plan and
are thercfore not included in issued capital.

Subsequent to year end and prior to the Company's initial public offering there was a 2:1 share split of all
shares

Equity holdings and transactions

The shares in Emeco Holdings Limited held, directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management
person, including their personally-related entities at year end, is as follows:

Held at 30 June 2006

Held at ‘A’ Class ‘B’ Class
Held at Ordinary 30 June 2006 Management  Management
1 July 2005  Shares Issued Ordinary Performance  Performance
Ordinary Shares  during year Shares Shares!" Shares'")

Directors

L C Freedman 13,658,234 - 13,658,234 937,500 937,500
R L C Adair 3,231,081 - 3,231,081 937,500 1,687,500
G J Minton - - - - -
] D Camegie - - - - -
R I Koczkar - - - - -
P J McCullagh - - - - -
A N Brennan - 450,000 @ 450,000 @ - -
J S H Fitton - 108,225 108,225 - -
Exccutives

D O Tilbrook 2,989,412 - 2,989,412 937,500 1,687,500
D A Jeffery 2,989,412 - 2,989,412 937,500 1,687,500
T"T Sauvarin 3,337,203 - 3,337,203 937,500 937,500
M A Turner 2,989,412 - 2,989,412 937,500 1,687,500
W E Malvern 3,337,202 - 3,337,202 937,500 937,500
R C Parish - 300,000 300,600 - -

M All of the performance shares were issued 21 January 2005. There were no movements in the
performance shares held during the year.

@) Total includes shares held under management incentive share plan,

Subsequent to year end and prior to the Company’s initial public offering therc was a 2:1 share split of all
shares.
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30 Key management personnel disclosure cont’d

Directors

L C Freedman
R L C Adair
G J Minton

J D Carnegie
R 1 Koczkar

P J McCullagh
Executives

D O Tilbrock
D A Jeffery

T T Sauvarin
M A Turner
W E Malvern
R C Parish

Held at
14 December 2004
Ordinary Shares

QOrdinary
Shares Issued
during period

13,658,234
3,231,081

2,989,412
2,989,412
3,337,203
2,989,412
3,337,202

Held at
30 June 2005
Ordinary
Shares

13,658,234
3,231,081

2,989,412
2,989,412
3,337,203
2,989,412
3,337,202

Held at 30 June 2005

®  All of the performance shares were issued 21 January 2005, There were no movements in the
performance shares held during the pericd.

Emeco Holdings Ltd

‘A’ Class ‘B’ Class
Management  Management
Performance  Performance

Shares®™ Shares®

937,500 937,500
937,500 1,687,500
937,500 1,687,500
937,500 1,687,500
937,500 937,500
937,500 1,687,500
937,500 937,500
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30 Key management personnel disclosure cont’d

Exchangeable Notes

The movement during the year in the number of exchangeable notes in Emeco Limited (a controlled entity
of Emeco Holdings Limited) held directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management person,
including their personally-related cntities, is as follows:

Accrued interest

Acquired Held at Held at at
through float 30 June 2006 30 June 2006 30 June 2006
No. ™ No. 3 h
Directors

L C Freedman 10,000 10,000 1,000,000 18,981
R L C Adair 700 700 70,000 1,329
G ] Minton 2,500 2,500 250,000 4,745
1 D Carnegie 2,500 2,500 ~ 250,000 4,745
R T Koczkar 750 750 75,000 1,424
P J McCullagh 750 750 75,000 1,424
A N Brennan - - - -
J S H Fitton - - - -

Executives
3 O Tilbrook - - - -
D A Jeffery 1,000 1,000 100,000 1,898
T T Sauvarin 4,000 4,000 400,000 7,592
M A Turner - - - -
W E Malvern - - - -
R C Parish - - - -

M All notes were issued to the above directors and executives on 27 April 2005. None of these partics
traded in any of these securities during the year.

Loans

Other than the loan issued under thc management incentive share plan no specified director or executive
has entered into any loan arrangements with consolidated entity.

Other transactions with the Company or its controlled entities

Under the Investment Service Agreement entered between Emeco Holdings Limited and Archer Capital
Pty Limited (“Archer”) on 2 November 2005, Emeco Holdings Limited has agreed to pay $750,000 p.a.
(indexed to inflation) (2005: $750,000) for consulting services and $750,000 (2005: Nil) for the
completion of a major service. A major scrvice means any listing, business sale or a capital raising of
greater than $150,000,000 in a calendar year. The agreement shall terminate at any time by agreement
between the parties, in the event of a listing, business, or share sale. The terms are no less favourable than
those offered by other consultants. Archer is a related party of G J Minton and J D Camegic in their
capacity as Partners.

Under the Invesiment Scrvice Agreement entered between Emeco Holdings Limited and Pacific Equity
Partners Pty Limited (“PEP") on 2 November 2005, Emeco Holdings Limited has agreed to pay $750,000
p.a. (indexed to inflation} (2005: $750,000) for consulting services and $750,000 (2005: Nil) for the
completion of a major service. A major service means any listing, business sale or a capital raising of
greater than $150,000,000 in a calendar year. The agrecement shall terminate at any time by agreement
between the parties, in the cvent of a listing, business, or share sale. The terms are no less favourable than
those offered by other consultants. PEP is a related party of R 1 Koczkar and P J McCullagh in their
capacity as Managing Directors.
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30 Key management personnel disclosure cont’d

As at 30 June 2006 the above transaction had the following impact on assets and liabilities of the
Consolidated entity:

2006 2005
$ $

Current liabilities ' 1,500,000 750,000

1,500,000 750,000

No other director or specificd executive transacted with the consolidated entity in the reporting year other
than described above.

The aggregate amounts recoghised during the year relating to specified directors, specified executives and
their personally related entities, were total revenue of Nil (2005: Nil) and total payments (of prior year
accruals) and accruals of $4,500,000 (2005: $750,000).

31 Non key management personnel disclosures

The classes of non key management personnel are:
» subsidiaries (Note 28)
s associate (Note 29)

Consolidated The Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
Transactions $000’s $000°s $000's $000's
The aggregate amounts inclided in the profit
from ordinary activities before income tax
expense that resulted from transactions with non
director related parties are:

Dividend revenue
Associate - 425 - .

Aggregate amount of othcr transactions with non
director rclated parties:

Loan advances to:
Subsidiarics - - 167,796 119,501

Ultimate parent entity
Emeco Holdings Limited is the ultimate parent entity of the consolidated entity.
32 Explanation of transition to AIFRSs

As stated in note 1(a), these are the consolidated entity’s first annual consolidated financial statements
prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards — ATFRSs.

The accounting policies in note 1 have been applied in preparing the annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2006 and the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2005.

In preparing the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2005, the consolidated entity has
adjusted amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with its old basis of
accounting {previous GAAP).

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to AIFRSs has affected the consolidated entity’s
balance sheet, income statement and cash flows is set out in the following tables and the notes that
accompany the tables,
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entitics
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

32 Explanation of transition to AIFRSs cont’d

@

(b)

(©)

@

(e)

Under previous GAAP, the gross proceeds of non-current asset sales are included as revenue.
The carrying amount of non-current assets sotd are included in the cost of the sale of non-
current assets. Under AIFRS sales of non-current assets are recorded on a net basis and are
recorded as profit/loss from sale of non-current assets in the income statement.

The effect is to decrease revenue and cost of the sale of non-current assets by $1,062,000
respectively for the period ended 30 June 2005.

Under previous GAAP, the catrying amount of goodwill was amortised on a straight-line basis
over 20 years. Under AIFRS goodwill will not be subject to amortisation but tested for
impairment annuaily.

The impact on results for the period ended 30 June 2005 resulted in an increase in profit
before tax of $4,875,000 from the reversal of the goodwill amortisation for the consolidated
entity and a corresponding increase in goodwill.

There were no impairment adjustments for the consolidated entity for the period ended 30
June 2005.

Under previous GAAP and AIFRS rental contracts that met the definition of a contract
intangible asset have been recognised as part of a business combination. Under AIFRS, the
initial recognition of a contract intangible resulted in the recognition of a deferred tax liability
and a corresponding increase to goodwill of $6,240,000. Amortisation of the contract
intangible asset will reduce its carrying value and the associated deferred tax liabitity,
resulting in a reduction to income tax cxpense. The impact from the amortisation of the
contract intangible for the period ended 30 June 2005 has resulted in a decrease in income tax
expense and deferred tax liabilities of $2,790,000.

Under previous GAAP software assets developed for internal use were included in property,
plant and equipment. Under AIFRS softwarc assets developed for internal use were
reclassified from property, plant and equipment to intangible assets. This resulted in a
reclassification of $136,000 in the consolidated entity 30 June 2005.

In accordance with AIFRS, the assets and liabilities of foreign aperations, including goodwill
and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, are transiated from the entity’s functional
currency to the consolidated entity’s presentation currency of Australian dollars at foreign
exchange rates ruling at reporting date. The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are
transtated to Australian dollars at the exchange rates approximating the exchange rates ruling
at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are
recognised directly in a separale component of equity.

The impact of translating goodwill allocated to foreign operations to its functional currency is
an increase in the foreign currency translation reserve in the outside equity interest of
$406,000.

There are no other changes in functional currency for the consolidated entity.

Emeco Holdings Ltd 89




Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

32 Explanation of transition to AIFRSs cont’d

(H

(&

Under previous GAAP current and deferred tax asset and liabilities were recognised by the
head entity of a tax consclidated group through income tax expense where a tax funding
agreement was not in place. The Company has subsequently entered into a tax funding
agreement, Under AIFRS, wholly owned subsidiarics in a tax-consolidated group must
recognise their own tax amounts directly, and the current tax liability (asset) and any deferred
tax asset relating fo tax losses are assumed by the head entity. Asscts and liabilities arising
under tax funding arrangements arc recognised as intercompany assets and liabilities.

The impact on the consolidated entity as a result of tax consolidations under IFRS is nil. The
impact to the Company is a decreasc in income tax expense of $4,152,000. The Company will
recognise intercompany receivables and payables of $6,178,000 and $4,909,000 respectively,
and a decrease in its deferred tax assets and defcrred tax liabilities of $2,712,000 and
$5,595,000 respectively.

Explanation of material adjustments 1o the cash flow statement for 2005
There are no material differences between the cash flow statement presented under AIFRSs
and the cash flow statement presented under previous GAAP.

Reclassifications
The transition to AIFRS has required minor reclassification within the income statements and
balance sheets.
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

33 Changes to accounting policy

In the current period the consolidated entity adopted AASB 132: Financial Instruments: Disclosure
and Presentation and AASB 139: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement from 1
July 2005. This change in accounting policy has been adopted in accordance with the transition
rules contained in AASB 1, which does not require the restatement of comparative information for
financial instruments within the scope of AASB 132 and AASB 139.

The adoption of AASB 139 has resulted in the consolidated entity recognising all derivative
financial instruments as assets or liabilities at fair value. This change has been accounted for by
adjusting the opening balance of equity through retained earnings and hedge reserve at | July
2005.

The impact on the balance sheet in the comparative period is set out below as an adjustment to the
opening balance sheet as at 1 July 2005, The transitional provisions will not have any effect in
future reporting periods.

Reconciliation of financial instruments as if AASB 132 and 139 was applied at 1 July 2005

(1) Derivative financial instruments I July 2005
Effect of
Previous change of
GAAP accounting policy AIFRS
Notes $7000 $000 $°000
Deferred tax asset (a) 3,449 527 3,976
Tradc and other payables (a) - 1,755 1,755
Hedging reserves (a) - (1,228) (1,228)
Notes

(a) Under previous GAAP the consolidated entity did not recognise derivativcs at fair value on
the balance sheet. In accordance with AIFRS derivatives are now recognised at fair value.
The effect in the consolidated entity is to increase trade and other payables by $1,755,000, an
increase in deferred tax asset by $527,000 and a decreasc in the hedging reserve by

$1,228,000.
(2) Reclassification of deferred borrowing
costs 1 July 2005
Effect of
Previous change of
GAAP accounting policy AIFRS
Notes $'000 5000 $7000
Other assets (b) 16,376 (16,376) -
Interest bearing liabilities (b) 374,321 (16,376) 357,945
Notes

(b) Under previous GAAP deferred borrowing costs werce classified as other non current assets.
Under AASB 139 these have been reclassified as an offset to interest bearing liabilities. Refer
to note (1m),
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

34 Subsequent events
Initial public offering

On August 4, 2006 the Company completed its initial public offering (“IPO™) with the allotment of
261.7 million shares in Emeco Holdings Limited, These shares began trading on a nermal basis on
the Australian Stock Exchange under the issuer code “EHL” on August 7, 2006. As a result of the
PO the following transactions occurred:

()  Emeco UK acquisition
The Company acquired all the shares of Emeco (UK) Limited for a purchase consideration
of $116.5 million,

(i) Notes exchange and redemption
The Exchangeable Notes (refer note 18) have been redeemed or converted to shares in the
Company. Noteholders electing to exchange their notes for shares in the Company received
a 2.5% discount. The remaining Exchangeable Notes (face value: $54.7 million) were
redeemed by the Company for cash at a 6.0% premium to the face value.

(iii}  Deferred subscription
Deferred subscriptions by a number of existing sharehelders were satisficd with the
subscription of $18.9 million in shares immediate prior to the completion of the [PO.

(iv)  Management performance shares
The A and B Class management performance shares with an outstanding amount of $11.5
million (refer note 22) were all converted to ordinary shares on a one for one basis upon
achicving all hurdles.

{v)  Repayment of debt
The consolidated entity repaid $260 million of its senior debt facility from IPO proceeds.

Acquisition of Bevans

Under an asset purchasc agreement dated 13 June 2006, Emeco International Pty Ltd, a subsidiary
of the Company, agreed to acquire Bevans, an independent earthmoving equipment rental and
sales business based in Orange, NSW.

The acquisition price for the business comprised a cash component of $8.7 million, and an issue of
666,666 shares in the Company to the vendor. The acquisition of Bevans was completed on 5 July
2000,

Acquisition of equipment by Emeco Equipment (USA) LLC

On 10 July 2006, Emeco Equipment (USA) LLC, a member of the Emeco Group of companies,
acquired from TSM North America Inc. (TSM) a large package of TSM’s heavy earth moving
cquipment which is partially deployed under rental contracts with coal mining companies in
Kentucky and West Virginia.

Under the terms of the sale agreement between Emeco and TSM, Emeco acquired approximately
50 machines for a purchase price of US$11.4 million. Emeco was also assigned 8 number of
TSM’s equipment rental contracts.
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30.June 2006

35 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share at 30 June 2006 was bascd on the profit attributable Lo
ordinary shareholders of $22,670,000 and a weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year ended 30 Junc 2006 of 179,457,000. The Company has
calculated earnings per share on profits before any allocation to the minority interest and has
accordingly included the weighted average ordinary shares of the minority interest in the
calculation. This is due to the equalisation agreement that has been entered into between the
Company and the minority interest Emeco (UK) Limited whercby the Company and the minority
interest have guaranteed security and returns over each others performance. The equalisation deed
was subsequently terminated as a result of the Company’s initial public offering, whereby the
Company also acquired 100% ownership of the minority interest. (Refer note 34)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares Consolidated
In thousands of shares Note 2006
Issued ordinary shares at 1 July 150,000
Effect of shares issued in August 2005 under management

incentive share plan 1,481
Effect of shares issued/committed in November 2005 26,941
Effect of shares issued in Janvary 2006 942
Effect of shares issued in May 2006 35
Effect of shares issued in June 2006 under management

incentive share plan 53
Effect of shares issued in June 2006 5
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

at 30 June 179,457

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share at 30 June 2006 was based on profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of $22,670,000 and a weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year ended 30 Junc 2006 of 197,457,000. Exchangeable Notes are
considered potential ordinary shares but have not been included in the dilutive earnings per share
because they did not have a dilutive impact,

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
In thousands of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 June 179,457
Effect of conversion of A & B management performance shares 22(c)(d) 18,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

at 30 June 197,457

Earnings per share for continuing operations

Basic earnings per share

InAUD

From continuing operations 0.126

Diluted carnings per share
In AUD
From continuing operations 0.115

Comparative information
The Company has not provided any comparative information for the prior period as the Company

did not have any listed ordinary shares, nor was it in the process of listing and was therefore not
required to determine earnings per share.
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Directors' Declaration

1. In the opinion of the directors of Emece Holdings Limited (“the Company”):

(a) the financial statements and notes, including the remuneration disclosures of the
Remuneration report in the Director’ report, set out on pages 19 to 32 are in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including;

i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the
consolidated entity as at 30 June 2006 and of their performance, as
represented by the results of their operations and their cash flows, for the
financial ycar ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations
200t; and

{b) the remuneration disclosures that are contained in pages 19 to 32 of the
Remuneration report in the Directors” report comply with Australian Accounting
Standard AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures.

(c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company is able to pay its debts as
and when they become due and payable.

2. The directors have been given the declarations required by Section 295A of the Corporations
Act 2001 by the chief executive officer and chief financial officer for the financial year ended
30 June 2006.

Datcd at Perth, 12 day of September 2006.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

@nr/lc Freedman Robin Adair

anaging Director Director
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Indepcndent audit report to members of Emeco Holdings Limited
Scope
The financial report, remuneration disclosures and dirvectors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the income statements, statements of recognised income and
expense, balance sheets, statements of cash flows, accompanying notes to the financial
statements, and the directors’ declaration for both Emeco Holdings Limited (the “Company™)
and Emeco HoldingsLimited and its Controlled Entities (the “Consolidated Entity”} for the
financial year ended 30 June 2006. The Consolidated Cntity comprises both the Company and
the entities it controlled during that year.

As permitted by the Corporations Regulations 2001, the Company has disclosed information
about the remuneration of directors and executives (“remuneration disclosures”), required by
Australian Accounting Standard AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures, under the heading
“Remuneration report” of the dircctors’ report and not in the financial report.

The Remuneration report also contains information not required by Australian Accounting
Standard AASB 124 which is not subject to our audit.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. This includes
responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are
designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting
estimates inherent in the financial report. The directors are also responsible for preparing the
relevant reconciling information regarding the adjustments required under the Australian
Accounting Standard AASB | First-time Adoption of Australian equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards. The directors are also responsible for the remuneration
disclosures contained in the directors’ report.

Audit approach

We conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion to the members of the
Company. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards in order
to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material
misstatement and that the remuneration disclosures comply with AASB 124. The nature of an
audit is influenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the
inherent limitations of internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive
evidence, Therefore, an audit cannot guaraniee that all material misstatements have been
detected.

We performead procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents
fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and
other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with
our understanding of the Company’s and the Consolidated Entity’s financial position, and of
their performance as represented by the results of their operations and cash flows and whether
the remuneration disclosures comply with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 124.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

s examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report, and

o assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the dircctors.

KPWG, an Austialian pacinership, s part of the EPMG Inteinational
nebwerk. KPMG Internadonal i a Swing cooperair.
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While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over financial
reporting when determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed

to provide assurance on internal controls.
Audit opinion
In our opinion;

(1) the financial report of Emeco Holdings Limited is in accordance with:

a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

i)  giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and Consolidated Entity’s
financial position as at 30 June 2006 and of their performance for the financial

ycar ended on that date; and;

i)  complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations
Regulations 2001; and
(b) other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia; and

(2) the remuneration disclosures that are contained in the Remuneration report in the
directors’ report comply with Austratian Accounting Standard AASB 124 Related Party

Disclosures.
Kz
KPMG
/ el
BCF TON
Partner
Perth

12 September 2006
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ING Australla Heldings Limited
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GPO Box 3938 Sydney 200i
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347 Kent Strect
Sydncy NSW 2000

Telephene (02) 9234 8111
Faggimile  (02) 9299 1446

02 9234 B401

Dear Sir

Attached please find a Form 603 Initial Substantial Shareholder Notice it relation to Emeco

Holdings Limited.

Yours faithfully

&

Steve Rouvray
Secretary

sem:eh:($UDSHARE): 1-603FAX

Loaber NG Grop
e crooP




e /WSS WP LieJdVW LA VL &8 VeUVY A3V LM AU A LA i AS

ING &

22 Septerber 2006

The Secretary
Emeco Holding Limited
Ground Floor
10 Ord Street
- WESTPERTH, WA, 6005

Fax: 089321 1366

Dear Sir

¥ fART AR Tead VT

ING Austratiz Holdings Limited
ACN 008 459 596

GPO Box 3938 3yducy 2001
DX 10110 S.8.E.

347 Kent Suect
Sydney NSW 2000

Tclephone (02) 5234 8111
Facsiinile  {02) 9299 1446

Enclosed please find a Form 603 Initial Substantial Shareholder Notice, .

Yours fzithfully

‘ Steve Rounvray
1 Secretary
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Form 603

Corporalicns Act 2001
Seclion 6B

Notice of initial substantial halder

Tn, Compary Name/Schems Emeco Roldings Limitaed

AUN/ARSN

1, Delsite of substantial holder (V) '

Nutne ING Australia Holdings Limicted {and related companies - Refer Armmexu=e A)
ACNJARSN §F applicable] G03 458 386
Tha noldet became 3 susstandi. holder an 11/09/2006

2. Detaits of voting prwer

The 1otal nuraber ¢f voces attacheg Lo all the vehing shares in the company o valing ireerests in the scheris shat e subscantial hoider or & associate (2 had &
relevant Imerest (3] i on the date Lhe substanual older lecame 3 substantial holder are us Toilgws; .

Cluss of secuiitis [4) Murnber of secirilies Person's votes (3) Veiing powar |6)
ordinary SaBraes 18720738 38720738 6.131%

3. Details of relevant interests

Tt nat.ra of thy ratevanl nterest the substarcial bolder or an assoctate latl Inthe Toliowing varing socuiltles on the dale tha substantial holder bocana a substantial
Icider era as folluws:

Holder of relevant nterest Nateen of edevar; irtatost (1) Class are number of secur ey

Refer Annexure C

4, Delails of present registerad halders
Tie: persures fay'stergd 25 holders of the seeurtias referted b bn paragrapt 3 shove afr 09 lollows:

Hulter of selevat Rempstered hialder of Person entitled o ke Class ard rurnber
interest sezunrles registerer 35 1oider (6) of securiies

Refer annoxure C

5. Consideralion

The consdesiion paid for each ralcvant Interest ielermd o @ paragraph 3 abive. and Aopéred In the fowr moiths g to cthe day thas e suosiandal holdz secame 3
st bsiarmiat holdar s as follows:

Holder of ratevant Date of aepuisilan Consitaration {9) Class ond nuinber
interest of securklas
Cath Ron-cash

Refer Aanexure B
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6. Associates
The reasens thi persans rAnIEE I paregrach 3 aoue e assbeiates o the SULuralal hotder aie o follows:

Name and ACH/ARSN [ upplicable) Nature of assatalian

Relatad corporationa

7. Addressey
Ihe ardrestes of persons named In UHS o1 arn A% folws:

Name Address

Refer Annexures A and

—

|
Signature .
prntiame 8 & ROUVRAY capsl’ty SECRETARY
sign here date 22/ D9 ;2006
DIRECTIONS
it If there we = number of suctandat bolders witk: semilar or iglated relevant 1ite: ests {eg.  corporation and Its related corporations, orthe MANAGEF ey trustes of an

eqLity trust), Lhe names could be inclided in en anurure ot form. 1F the “elevant Interests of a group of persans &rd wssenlially s mdar, they may be “efarsd o
uvougher: the form a5 3 specifically named graup iF 1 e membershiz of ¢ath gioup, with thenames and oddresses of members Is Cearly Se. 0wt v paragraph 7 of the

form,
2 St the definftion of "ersocisio” i sectlon 9 af the Corporations Act 2007,
f3) $ee tho gehnltivn of “relevant interest” in sacticns 609 end 6718{7) of the Coarporanions Act 2000,

[4) Tha vueing shares of 2 company constilule ane cAzss wnizss divided hito seperte <lagses,

) Tho total pLmber of votes attac1cd to ol tha veting shares in the company of voling islerests I tE ST (I 07y} Wt Iha JRTSON OF B A550CMAC has 4 releviet
irterag {n.

R Tha nepsolv's vules divided by the tota) votes In o baly 2utporiite o scherne nrutdpliod by 100,

U] Inclode dereils f:
fab any relevant agreement of other circumstances by which the reluvant intrest was zcquired. |7 stOsection 671R[4) spplies, 3 copy of ey domument seudng oit
dhe wrins ol any relevanl agreement. and 8 statement by the person giving full und accurate delalls of any contract, scherme or arangement, MUSK aecomaany
\his form, together with & wrlden slulement cenifying Lis coact, stheme o arrangement; 3

i any rua'ificztion of the power of o parson to exarcise, conTo! e exereise of, o Influance the exerCice of, the voting powars o disposad of the sezurites (o
which tha Ietevant interest relates (indicnilng tearly the partirular securitios 1o which the qualificadion epplies).

588 thy del ution of “relavanr zgreement” in section 9 of Wie Corpnacions Ac 2001,

1)} I e substantial polaer is urab w to determing M ‘danclry of tho pason {eg. i 1he relevait stered a75es bucausa of an option} wrne 'Lrknewa'.

) Eetally of te consldarLion must inclide any and a1 banelits, money And acher, that any peison iom whom 3 relevant intarest wis weglred has, o may, decome
htitan to recelve INKRIGLIoN Lo that stguiskicn. Lgtails must be included even if the havefit s conditional on the happaning or nar nf & contngency. Desalls must b
included oF any henefit paid on balalf of che substantt Falder or 115 assoelale 1n relation to the acguisiciors, even il Urey are nat fald directly to Uhe person from whom
thy relrvant interost was vtuuned.
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Annexure A

To Form 603

This is Annexure A, of § pages

reierred o in the Form 603 Notice

of [nitfal Substuniial Holder signed

hy me and dared .., 22 Scprember 2006

Name: 5 S Rouvray

Capacity: Company Secretary

Slgnature E ?‘ 2 S

Dared: ..., 12 Scpiember 2006

10w Allel RLY Ll

7 AWl

Rl M aF

GOMPANY NAME ACN
52 PHILLIP STREET PTY LTD 000 197 455
ABIFORM PTY LIMITED 003 981 771
ADVICE FINANGIAL SOLUTIONS PTY LIMITED 098 870 800
ADVICE FOR LIFE PTY LTD 070 195 274
ADVISER LENDING SERVICES PTY UMITED 009 860 057
ADVISOR INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED 009 586 2585
AMFAS PTY LIMITED 005 720 427
ANZ INSAGE PTY LIMITED 099 685 648
ANZ LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 008 425 652
ANZ MANAGED INVESTMENTS LIMITED 004 392 260
ARMSTRONG JONES LIFE ASSURANCE PTY LIMITED 004 885 849
ARMSTRONG JONES MANAGEMENT FTY LIMITED Note 3| 008 947 840
ARMSTRONG JONES PTY LTD Note 3| 008 781 511
ATHELAS PTY LIMITED 008 638 622
AUSTPLANNERS ASSET MANAGEMENT PTY LIMITED 005 757 847
AUSTRALIAN COMMUNITY INSURANCE PTY LIMITED 003 243 589
AUSTRALIAN GENERAL INSURANGE PTY LIMITED 005 007 334
AUSTSERVICES PTY LIMITED 059 421 304
AUSVEST POXTFOLIO SERVICE PTY LIMITED 003 318 312
BLEAKLEYS LIMITED 002 102 356
DAVIDSON HUGHES DEVELOPMENTS PTY LTO Mote3| 005 752 910

Annexure A-G{13-Full Llsr-Nov0d ]
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COMPANY NAME ACN
DE RUN SECURITIES PTY LTD 084 086 884
DOMAIN DEVELOPMENT PTY LIMITED Note3| 010 689 737
FINANCIAL FAGTS PTY LTD 006 501 293
FINANGIAL INVESTMENT NETWORK GROUP PTY LIMITED 003 790 609
FINANCIAL PLANNING HOTLINE PTY UMITED 000 895 269
FING SERVIGES PTY LIMITED 116 112 031
HEINE ADMINISTRATION SERVICES PTY LIMITED Note 3| Q07 257 794
HEINE ASSET MANAGEMENT PTY LIMITED Note 3| (072656 798
HEINE COMFUTER SERVICES PTY LTD Note3| 006 819 727
HEINE FUND3 MANAGEMENT PTY LIMITED Note 3| 061851 983
HEINE MANAGEMENT PTY LIMITED Note 3| 006 475 449
HEINE MORTGAGE ADMINISTRATION PTY LIMITED Note 3 077 516 995
HEINE MORTGAGE MANAGEMENT PTY LTD Note 3| D06 784 032
HEINE PROPERTY MANAGEMENT PTY LTD Note3| 006 874 639
HEINE SECURITIES PTY LIMITED Note 3| (072656 752
INDUSTRY RETIREMENT PTY LIMITED 004 586 086
ING ADMINISTRATION PTY LIMITED 008 947 831
ING AUSTRALIA LIMITED 000 000 773
ING BANK (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED Note 4y 000 833 292
ING BANK NV Nate 1
ING CORPORATE SERVICES PTY LIMITED 008 646 277
ING CUSTODIANS PTY LIMITED . 008 508 496
ING EASTERN CREEK PTY LTD 007 257 794
ING FINANCIAL PLANNING PTY LTD 003 318 330
ING FUNCS MANAGEMENT LIMITED 003 002 800
ING GENERAL INSURANCE BTY LIMITED 072 892 365
ING GROEP NV and its related bodies corporate including the following Note 1
companigs:
ING INDUSTRIAL CUSTODIAN PTY LTD 081 823 743
ING INSURANCE INTERNATIONAL BV Note 1

[
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RETIREINVEST BRISBANE CITY PTY LIMITED

0B 1liov FAA Dl &2 9299 1440 1N Aol BLYV LU * aAda
COMPANY NAME ACN
ING INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED 003 731 959
ING LIFE HOLDINGS LIMITED 099 127 321
ING LIFE LIMITED 008 657 176
ING MANAGEMENT LIMITED Note3  N0G 065 032
ING OFFICE CUSTODIAN PTY LTD 090 814 645
ING PRIVATE CAPITAL PTY LIMITED 009 206 857
ING VERZEKERGINGEN NV Note 1
INSURANCE BROKER HOTLINE PTY LTD 076 731 514
INTEGRATED NETWORKS PTY LIMITED 003 319 319
LYNX FINANCIAL SERVICES PTY LTD 004 937 704
M.AE.G. PTY LIMITED 000 003 323
MERCANTILE MUTUAL FINANCIAL SERVIGES PTY LIMITED 000 006 057
MERCANTILE MUTUAL INSURANCE EQUITIES PTY LIMITED 001 160 809
MILLENNIUM3 CONSULTING SERVICES PTY LTD 098 579 304
MILLENNIUM3 FINANCIAL PLANNING ADMINISTRATION PTY LTD 084 479 179
MILLENNIUM3 FINANGIAL SERVICES GROUP PTY LIMITED 098 554 058
MILLENNHIMS3 FINANCIAL SERVICES PTY LTD 084 529 987
MILLENNIUM3 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PTY LTD 189 579 322
MINKX PTY LTD 104 497 734
MML PROPERTIES PTY LIMITED 005 403 841
NNA PTY LIMITED 067 V87 853
OPTIMIX INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED 006 790 629
PAGIFIC MUTU*_\L AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITEb 002033 109
PARTNERSHIP PLANNING BROKER SERVICES LIMITED 000 574 970
FARTNERSHIP PLANNING LIMITED 009 554 189
POSTBANK AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITED 00B 647 185
PROSAFE INVESTMENTS PTY LIMITED 000 586 491
PRUDENT ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL SERVICES PTY LTD 098 862 107
RETIREINVEST (NO 3) PTY LIMITED 002 920 541
100 304 354
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COMPANY NAME ACN

RETIREINVEST NOWRA PTY LIMITED 102 583 053
RETIREINVEST PTY LIMITED 001 774 125
RETIREINVEST SUBIACO PTY LIMITED 102 415 814
RETIREINVEST TOWNSVILLE PTY LIMITED 099 145 552
RIBENTLEIGH PTY LIMITED 113 855 520
RI CENTRAL COAST PTY LIMITED 105 039 647
RI DANDENONG PTY LIMITED 114 152 519
RIGOLD COAST PTY LIMITED 105 039 628
RIKEW RTY LTD 105 930 658
RIMAROQCHYDORE PTY LIMITED 114 152 600
RIMOONEE PONDS PTY LTD 104 933 277
RIMORISSET PTY LIMITED 105039 656
RINEWCASTLE PTY LIMITED 114 176 162
RI ROCKHAMPTON & GLADSTONE PTY LIMITED 104 125 895
RI SHEPPARTON PTY LIMITED 006 444 080
RICKETTS ROAD MT WAVERLEY PTY LTD Note 3| (06819727
SUPER CONCEPTS PTY LTD Q07 437 %;.

SUPER SOLUTIONS PTY LTD

00z 963 341

SWING HIGH INVESTMENTS PTY LIMITED

009 131 088

SYNERGY ACVISORY SERVICES PTY LTD

068 908 878

SYNERQ@Y CONSOLIDATED PTY LIMITED

083 107 644

TANDEM FINANCIAL ADVICE LIMITED

006 226 777

TRENORTH PTY LIMITED

006 732 243

UNION INVESTMENT COMPANY PTY LIMITED

004 084 879

VANDENBER(GH FINANCIAL SERVICES PTY LIMITED

088 970 800

VENTURE CAPITAL PARTNERS (NOMINEES NO. 1) PTY LIMITED

082 834 900

VENTURE CAPITAL PARTNERS PTY LIMITED

079 575 689

WESTGARDENS PTY LIMITED

007 257 794

WESTGARDENS PTY LTD

114 031 284

WISE FINANCIAL SERVICES PTY LTO

003 808 268

Anneaune A-h(3-Full List-MovQ3
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COMPANY NAME ACN

Note 1. Address: ING House Amstelneenseweg 500 1081 KL Amsterdam, The Netherlands

" Nate 2. Address: 347 Kent Street, Sydney NSW 2000

Note 3, Address: Level 6, 345 George Streat, Sydney NSW 2000

Note 4. Address: Level 14, 140 Sussex Street, Sydney NSW 2000
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ANNEXURE ‘B
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Changes in relovant Interesis

This s the aanexwe marked "B 01 3 papes refared Lo in the form 803 bilal substantial sharaholdar algned by me on; 23 PR oo s

S5

§ 5 Royvray
By, ING Austraila Hoklings Limiled -

T AahSel

B

Date afchaige TFacmambuie misvantipeeras] Naturs of tRarDE TR I ART Dhven o relalian _fc_l-uuuuu-o:ﬁ'n Vulvn
| i crangs wlwucasiten actary
aTented
ZBI07/00 TG Buy of Uniis oh ASX s 23 204, 12,844 12,644
08/08 INGIM Buv of Unkta on ASX ] 21,078.486 11,167 11,167
108/08 INGIM Buy of Unfts on ASX 11,135 97 5,877 5817
2/00/05 INGIM Buy of Units ap ASX 31,75,63 16,751 16731
fzﬂz_m INGIM Buyy of Units o ASX 14,028.75 7468 7.485
4)08/06 INGIM Buy of tnits on ASX 207 728.1 106,328 109329
10/03.08 INGIM Buy of Unils cn ASX 346011 1,840 1,940
04/08 NGIM Buy of LInéls on ASY 11,948.24 6,523 6823
/08108 NGIM Buy of Units on ABX 24,819.56 13,246 13,248
180875 NGIM Fuy of Units on ASX 147639 78 791
1906 NGIM Buy of Linile on ASX 441883 2,27 4279
8A008 NGIM Buy of Linily on ASX 49 69532 25,513 26513
7R8/a6 [NGIn Buy of Unils on ASX ,891 .08 4,95 4863
THO5106 NN Buy of Unils on ASIX 900.01 4,553 4558
1/08/06 INGIM Buy of Unils on ASX 054,85 4,267 4,267
H08m5 INGIM Buy ofUnils en ASX 4,254,28 2,245 245
2008206 NG M Buy ol Unils on ASX 12 134.90 6,400 440
4/08/08 NG Buy of Units on ASK [ £3,325.10 33,228 33370
10/08/06 NGIM Buy of Unite on ASX 105582 -1 562
11/08/06 INGIM Buy ofUnie on ASX 3.647.06 2023 2.02
16M08/06 GIM Buy of Units on ASX ¥1.575.91 4,043 404
16/08/06 NGIM B ] 45308 34 3 4
40508 NGIM Eals of Units o ASK 3 85,157 .04 53141~ 63141
28/07/08 INGIM Buy ol Linits on ASX 150,283.81 04,614 104914
31/0708 - JNGIM Buy ol Linils on ASX 97, 742.4¢ 52,707 52,797
Q&veE INGIM Buy of Units da ASX 150,352.20 79,65 70,850
110806 NGIM Buy bl Units an ASX 79,440.30 41,925 9
20306 NGIM Buy of Units on ASX 226 59214 318,47 119&
D308 G Buy of Linits on ASX 3 160 050.31 53,251 83251
408/08 JGIM Buy of Unhia an ASX $ 1,686 877.40 893 14a| 893 148
1004708 NGIM Buy of Unils on ASX 5 28 361.80 15801 15,801
G808 NGIM Buy of Unils on ASX 5 o7,808 06 64.271] 94,771
&0 NGIM Buy of Units an ASX 2 9. 102 643) 108,542
808/08 NGIM Buy of Linkts on ASX 2,088.44 E 486 6,485]
8i0%oe NGIM Buy of Ualts on ASX 33.084.27 17,527 176
X806 NGIM Buy of Laiks gn ABX 381,649.80 195,304 156,304
TR GiM B_T_yy-ﬁ rils on ABX 74,579.73 8,115 38,115
TR INGIM Buv of Untts on A3X 65,495.43 35,054 35054
19 INGIM By of Liniz an ASX 1,500,000.00 789,474 789474
102408 INGIM Sale of Linlls ¢n ASX 1,498,055 23 780474~ 789474
28/07/06 NGL Buy of Units on ASX 32,601,45 17,975 17875
3110708 INGL Buy of Unita on ASX [1 16,746.74 048 a 048
1/08'06 INGL Buy of Unka on ASX 5,764,689 13,548 13,649
1/08/06 INGL, Buy of on ASX [] 13.811.79 7183 7,183
208,06 INGL Buy oFUnits on ASX F 38,810.43 20,473 20473
20816 iNGL. Byy ol Units on ABX 17, 146.32 9,128 6126
408,06 INGL Buy of Units on ASX 280 .756.50 152,506 152 505
1CI0B06 NGL Buy of Units on ASX 4624.77 2,705 2,705
10806 INGL Buy of Unitg on ASX 16,646.86 9,231 8,231
108700 INGL Buy SFUnits on ASK, 34,502.83 18,48 18461
19/06/08 INGL : fuy oF Unils on ASX [ 2,057.45 1,103 1,103
BASOG6 NG Buy of Lnits on AGX 4,073,46 2585 2 565
60906 INGL Buy ef Unils on ASX 85 ,850.90 28,727
7/0508 INGL Buy of Urits on ASX 10,974 48 5578 6,578
70006 INGL Buy of Unitg on ASX 10,024.0 5,130 3,130
2807706 INGL Bury of Units gn ASX ] 117,172.68 £4,604 64,604
3107708 INGL, Buy of Unlts on ASX $0,187.20 32,511 32,511
1406108 NGL Buy of Uinlts an ASX 0233120 48613 45,913
10806 NGL Buy of Unha on ASX 48,784,588 25744 25,744
20806 NGL Byy of Units on ASX ) 19\, 11541 73,370 73,370
%Sﬂ INGL, Buy of Linits on A 5 51,440.07 32,701 32,701
AJ05/0E INGL Buy of Units on ASX 1,040,051,99 547,401 547 401
1008/06 NGL Buy al Lnits on ASX 1735561 9,736 5736
11088 NGL Buv of Linlla on ASX §9,938.42 33,2 33 231]
16/08/08 NGL he on ASX 124,538.72 66,462 66,482
180856 NGL Buy of Untis on AEX 7,607,171 3,671 3,071
B/08K6 NGL Buy of Urits an ASK 18,187.51 9,350 5,380
510638 NGL Eug al‘gnif.s an &bx 04,9255,27 105,060 105,060
70618 NGL Bury of Unita an ASX 39,H4.79 20,399 20,300
708486 GL Buy of Unite an A5X 38,658.95 18,761 18,764
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2B/07108 NGL Byy of Unils on ASX. 1,409853.15] 777,386 777 396
31/G708 NGL Buy of Units on ASX 72423288] 391208 301,208

1/0kme NGL Buy of Unils on ASX 1,114362.92° 590,287 500 ,g.ﬂ
1408/06 INGE, of Un'ts on ASX 588,734.01 310,078 310678
2403008 INGL Byy of Unis on ASX 1,678.845.24 BES5 430! 845,438
3K08iE INGL 2f Unils on ASX 741 480.05 304 847 304,647
4/08708 TNGL Buy ot Units on ASK 15513022 00] 6617,300) 0,617,380
OB INGL Huy of Unils on ASX 205,862.68 117 117.676
806 INGL Buy of Unils pn ASX 724434.05 401,840 401,640
18/08m8 INGL Buy of Unils gn ASX 1,505218.60] 803,203 803,283
16/08/06 GL Buy of Units on ASX 49537.04 48 001 43,001
5/04/06 INGL Buy of Units gn ASX 263.262.03 130,617 130,817
B/0b/0f INGL of Unlls o0 ASX 2,844156,58]  1452.870] 14626810
TIDW0S INGL Buy of Linls on ASX 555,779,598 234 039 284 019
7O GL Buy of Linls on ABX S 510,450.68 281,234 261,214
25/07/08 NGL Buy of Unis on ASX s 230, 795.48 127 259 127,251
31/07,08 NGL Byy of Unkta cn ASX 118,546.03 B4 (36 64,036
1/08,06 NG Buy of Linfa ot ASK 142,155.580 6,408 Q9B ADS
a0 MGL —Buy pfUnita on ASX 96,240_18 50,789 50,789
NEL Buy of Units on ASX 2TA451.74 144 747 44 T4Y
306 INGL Buy of Units on ASX 121.215.40 61,518 §4.618
403508 NGL Buy of Units on ASX 2058 ,215.80 1083 72 1,083,272
10/0308 INGL Buy of Ui X 34 32 18,775 19,276
1§Aang INGL Buy af LUinils on ASX 113,881, 65,789 65,738
18/0305 NG Buy af Unila o ASX B4E 543,64 131 878 131878
18/0av05 INGL Buy of Untis an ASX ] 14 665.11 r8eal 71063
/08B INGL Buy of Unlts on ASX 3 4148032 21,393 21,303
00308 INGL Buy of Unlta on ASX 465,824 B0 279,800 239,800
1103/05 INGL Buy of Unia on ASX D1,027.78 45,521 46521
708106 INGL Buy of Linits on ASX 63,603.74 A2 TG 42,786
24/07/06 INGIM uy of Units en ASK 213,257 .89 117,58 117,501
31707106 INGIM uy of Unite on ASK 109,540.67 17 55,170
1/08/08 NGIM uy o[ Unils on ASX 121,340.79 4,261 64,281
18 NGIM Buy f Linity on ASX 64,111 64 3,832 33432
20808 NGM Buy of Units on ASX 182 823 73 A22 b5 433
AN INGIM . Buy of Units ¢n ASX B0,747.07 42,977 42077
410 INGIM Buy of Lintis gn ASK 1.584,881.20 534 148 834 12
Joronce INGInA wy ol Untis oa ASX $ 20,738,70 11,02 15,6261
11/03/08 NGIM wy of Liniix g1 ASK [ 71,568,01 35,97 §
1e/0x08 NEIM ury of Linit= an ASX ;] 148 £63.08
16408508 NGIM Buy of Unlts on ASX [] 8,845.52
£/08us NGIM Buy ol Uinits on 38,164 .68
0008 INGIM Buyv of Units on ASX 428 581.65
7006 NG Buy pfUnlts an ASX 60.81
J0Xa6 INGIM Buy bf Unlts on A%X 76.021.07
28/0%T106 INGIM uy of Unlts on ASX 463 870.56
33/0708 INGIM uy of Unita on ASX 84 §72.48
1846 INGIM uy ef Units on ASX 129,850 €6
0806 INGIM Wy of Units on ASK G8.454 08
20800 INGIM Buy oF\nils on AGX 195,205 12
310808 NGIM Huy of Unils on ASY 88,214.51
40808 NGIM By of Units on ASX 1A4681,428.70
1008/05 NGIM Buy ofUinita on ASX 24 501,93
1170806 INGIM Buy of Unfts on ASX B4 565.61
1610808 INGIM Buy of Units on ASX 175,714.99
160806 NGIM Buy of UnfTe on ASX 10,451.98
BDYING NGIM Buyy of Linhs on ASX 3 28,375.27
600G NGIM Buy of Unttx on ASX 3 284,071.64
7M808 NGIM Buy gfUnlte an ASK [} 55687.77 AE0
709{08 FE] Buy of Unfts gn ASY ] 61,145 86 28,175 2815
28/07/05 INGFM Buy of Units ap ASX [] 638,732.07 4T3 ABT 473,487
31/07,08 INGF Buy of Units on ASX 44109514 730,284 238,284
1088 INGFM Bury of Uniths on ASX B77.506.35 a508,973] 358,813
108196 INGFM Buy of Units on ASX 357,589.29 184 o02 185,802
208106 INGFAM Buy of Linits on ABX 1,020,782.08 538,370 638,370
30608 INGEM of Unils ¢n ASX 450,043,658 239,958 239,958
AMENE INGFM Bury of Linits an ASX 7.557,830,30]  4.030437] 4030437
[T INGFM Buy of Linllm on ASX 28,135.77 71,838 71,538
f08/08 INGFM Buy of Untta on ASX 445 34154 245187 45 107
408704 INGFM Buy of Lnits an ASX 877.36 450,373 450373
f0R08 INGFM Byy &f Unils on ASY 54,657 .40 29302 20,302
60356 INEFM Buy of Units on ASX 155,382.67 60,142 80,142
609516 INGFM Buy of Units on ASX 1,748,083.02 £97,595| 97 585
70908 WNEFM Buy of Units gn ASX 3 341,010.20 174,278 11437
70006 INGFM Bury of Units on ASX 3 313,906.49 180,285 160,285
60008 INCFM Buy ol UnHs on ASK 3 3327100.35] 196,188 56,15
E/0008 INGFM Buy ol Linitz on ASX ] 2 880343285 1,500,000 1,500 DOG
§0008 TGFM uy of Unlts on ASX 5 36132662 1,861,058 451,058
700008 MNGFM uy of Units on ASX 5 107,042 60 261,344 361,34,
70808 TNGFM vy gfUnits an ASX R4 375 A0 332132 332,33
2807706 INGL Buy ofUnits gn ASX 37,766,890 20,823 057
107106 INGL Buy pf Unlts nn ASX 19,300.64 10,479 10,47
10808 INGL Guy of Units on ASX 20,708.01 15,7381 15,738
10806 INGL Buy af Uinits on ASX [ 18.656.79 [ZH] 8,283
2/0806 INGL Buy of Unlla an ASX 3 44,784, 63 23,809} 23 600
T 7] INGL Byy of inha on ASX 5 18,763.20 10822 10373
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4/08/08 NGL Buy of Linits an A5 334 854.10 178,230 176,239
0XBAB GL Buy ot Unlts on ASX £,804.23 3,42 3,142
10en6 GL Buy of Unlis an 45X 19,344.57 10,725 10.725]
BRBAE NGL Mnsx 40,196.60 21 4ai 21,451
16/08/08 NGL Buy ofUnly; on ASX 27391.33 1,262] 1,232
6/08108 INGL Buy of Unla pn ASX 5.8208,80 3,005 3,005
8/08/:08 NGL Buy of Units ap ASX 55 425.48 3,682 33,652
7/08/06 NGL Buy ¢f Units on ASX 12,765.10 8,534 6,554 |
70006 NGL Buy of Linits on ASX 11,741.57 8,007 8,000
| 28/07/06 INGFM Buy ef Uni ASX 349.650.44 162 80 182,804
310706 INGFM Buy of Unilx on 45X 175.621,16 7,075 97,028
10 NG Buy of Unlia on ASX, 27937792 148 00 143,002
1108/00 NGFM Buy of Unlta on ASX 147 812.92 7,896 77,8986
__20u08 NGFM Buy of Units on ASX, 420,033,327 222,002 222,002
A0 INGFM Buy cfUnin on ASX 135503,72 88,040 DB 949
40808 NGF| Buy of Unliz on ASX 3001017.40] 1,598746] 1505748
ORa/E NGEM Buy of Units on ASX 3 44,271,55 24,02 28,821
1080 M Buv of Units pn 45X 5 152 805.00 84,718 [IXAL]
D NGFM Buv of Units on ASX [] 317 404,65 169,438 160,436
10R/0) NGFM Buy of Unlts on ASX [ 18,888 53] 10,825 10,125
/00/05 NGEM Buy of Unlls on ASY [ 541,706.73 292.500] 702560
608/00 \NGFv_ Byy of Unita on ASX [ 23734 4,158 34,158
o] INGFM Buy of Units on ASX 743,752,684 S83,564] 382554
7803 INGFM Huy of Units on ASX 148,335.03 74,277 74.2
760808 INGFM Buy of Unils on ASX 133 48343 68,313 88,313
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ANNEXURE '¢'
Present relavant interests

This s the annexura marked "G of A pages refamed 10 In Form 603 Inidal substantial shamholder signed bymeon: Ty Sy o g

—

S 5 Rouvvray
Secrelary, ING Aystralia Hodinges Lirmited

Haleins u rwmean| w2t Repreiored holdor of ascurka FUtOn oNIELD it b ewglalar md mam Ficyiier NZhrs of Midua Eivian mal marrsr 1| PorCn G Vol
- Lute T
NG Group Rcttvont Inumal aneie
IPursuat 1o caclion

[ANX Nomnasa Limiled LFG ' az2{1) ! Ine

Holdings Pty Lid ING Life Lid Stolutory a6 Responsibla Enidy Carmradioss £zl 17,420,518 17423 518
NG Group ANZ Nominggs Umllad LFG

NG | ja LId 52 Recpangble Entll I mlwrm 10,01 1,635 16,011,505

[ING Group Cogenl Mominzas Pty Limieted

Custodian Tor AuaL Ponfalia

Maragers NG Investmuet Mapjsosmant Linded =s Sasponsibia Enty Las ssove 1706011 1,708.411
ING Graus Prem Dmdress 34 -

Cuslodlan for AINE JNG invesiment Managemean| Lismited g5 AscponsDia Nl (As sbove 223134 233,234
NG Group Cilioerp Nomiveoa Py Cimied .

9% Cuswdian far

Cammannmsiih Ausuralis Sham )

5’ ING Invegiment amant Umled 31 Responsibla Enty [As speve 1.532.800 1532838
NG Group Cogen; Nomneas Fiy Limsa

Cusiodlan kor AMP Capital o 2n 1817357 LB17353

Liveédiors ING In Wanagem ot Limiiad a3 Responsi Mty {As strwe 817, 353 )

1 1 I VTR 2 T
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NG Rea! Estaw Internatonal
nvasimen's I By

Slreat, Sydney NSW 2000

eal ES
International Schenikard
G5 The Nesherlands

ANNEXURE ‘A’
ING Sroup
Name [aderes Ahbroviation®
ING Groap N.V, and s relsed [ING Houss, ING Group
bodles ¢orpqrate Armstakaenseweg S00
1091 KL Amsterdam
. Nethertands
ING Australls Haldings Limbad {Level 1, 347 Kent Sireet  [iNG Holdings
Sydpay NSW 2000
ING Investmant Mamagement JLevei 1, 347 Kent Street | ING Invesiment Management
Limited {Forméry Mercantihy  |Sydney NSW 2000
Mulual lnvestmem
Management Limitad
ING Managament Limiled Lavel 6, 345 Georgo ING Managament Liméted

ING Raal Estate [nvestmant Menagement
[Augtrg|la Pty Limiled

ANZ Mananed inves:ments /-
ANZ Nominegs Limiled
ANZ Nominegs Limiled

GPO Box 2842AA,
Meiboumne VIC 3001

|ANZ Namihees

GPO Bax 2842A4,

[ANZ Nominees Limied

Nomingas Ply Limited

NSVY Zooo

Cogent Nomineas Fly Limited | Gogant Nom ty Cogent Nomlinees Pty Liled [ENP Nominees}
Limlted 2O Bex R200
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